
1 

 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING  
AND POSSIBLE EXECUTIVE SESSION OF THE     

STATE OF ARIZONA 
CITIZENS CLEAN ELECTIONS COMMISSION 

 

Location:   Citizens Clean Elections Commission    

1616 West Adams, Suite 110     

Phoenix, Arizona 85007     

Date:  Thursday, June 25, 2020             

Time:     9:30 a. m. 

 

 Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the Commissioners of the Citizens Clean Elections 

Commission and the general public that the Citizens Clean Elections Commission will hold a regular meeting, which 

is open to the public on June 25, 2020. This meeting will be held at 9:30 a.m., at the Citizens Clean Elections 

Commission, 1616 West Adams, Suite 110, Phoenix, Arizona 85007.  The meeting may be available for live streaming 

online at www.livestream.com/cleanelections.  Members of the Citizens Clean Elections Commission will attend 

either in person or by telephone, video, or internet conferencing. 

The Commission may vote to go into executive session, which will not be open to the public, for the purpose of obtaining 

legal advice on any item listed on the agenda, pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03 (A)(3).  The Commission reserves the right 

at its discretion to address the agenda matters in an order different than outlined below. 

All matters on the agenda may be discussed, considered and are subject to action by the Commission.  

Possible action on any Matter Under Review (MUR) identified in this agenda may include, but is not limited 

to, authorizing or entering into a conciliation agreement with subject of the MUR, in addition to any other 

actions, such as finding reason to believe a violation has occurred, finding probable cause to believe a violation 

has occurred, applying penalties, ordering the repayment of monies to the Clean Elections Fund, or terminating 

a proceeding.  

Possible actions with regard to Rules and Rules amendments may include, but is not limited to, approval of the 

proposed rules or amendments, a determination whether any rules adopted unanimously should be made 

effective immediately, termination of a rulemaking docket, or directing staff to file a notice of supplemental 

rulemaking, approving a proposed Rule or Amendment for Public Comment.  

 

The agenda for the meeting is as follows:  

I. Call to Order. 

II. Discussion and Possible Action on Commission Minutes for April 30, 2020 meeting. 

 
 



2 

 

III. Discussion and Possible Action on Executive Director’s Report and Legislative Report.  Possible Action 

may include directing staff to take positions on legislation, legal, rulemaking, appointment and voter 

education issues discussed in the report.  The report is typically available online on the Clean 

Elections Commission website or via email request at ccec@azcleanelections.gov  

IV. Discussion and Possible Action on 5 Year Report.  

The Commission may vote to go into executive session, which will not be open to the public, for the 

purpose of obtaining legal advice on this item, pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03 (A)(3). 

V. Discussion and Possible Action on Lawsuit Update. 

The Commission may vote to go into executive session, which will not be open to the public, for the                 

purpose of obtaining legal advice on this item, pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03 (A)(3). 

VI. Public Comment 

This is the time for consideration of comments and suggestions from the public.  Action taken as a result of 

public comment will be limited to directing staff to study the matter or rescheduling the matter for further 

consideration and decision at a later date or responding to criticism 

VII. Adjournment. 

This agenda is subject to change up to 24 hours prior to the meeting.  A copy of the agenda background 

material provided to the Commission (with the exception of material relating to possible executive 

sessions) is available for public inspection at the Commission’s office, 1616 West Adams, Suite 110, 

Phoenix, Arizona 85007. 

      Dated this 23rd day of June, 2020.  

 

      Citizens Clean Elections Commission 

      Thomas M. Collins, Executive Director 

 

Any person with a disability may request a reasonable accommodation, such as a sign language interpreter, 

by contacting the Commission at (602) 364-3477.  Requests should be made as early as possible to allow 

time to arrange accommodations. 



Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

Transcript of Proceedings / Public Meeting - April 30, 2020 1

  
  
   1
  

 2
  

 3
  

 4                     THE STATE OF ARIZONA
  

 5              CITIZENS CLEAN ELECTIONS COMMISSION
  

 6
  

 7
  

 8
  

 9
  

10            REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF PUBLIC MEETING
  

11
  

12
  

13
  

14                       Phoenix, Arizona
  

15                        April 30, 2020
  

16                           9:33 a.m.
  

17
  

18
  

19
  

20
  

21                            COASH & COASH, INC.
               Court Reporting, Video & Videoconferencing

22                1802 North 7th Street, Phoenix, AZ 85006
                 602-258-1440     staff@coashandcoash.com

23
  

24                                 Prepared by:
                                 LILIA MONARREZ, CSR, RPR

25                                 Certificate No. 50699



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Transcript of Proceedings / Public Meeting
April 30, 2020

Page 2

 1         PUBLIC MEETING BEFORE THE CITIZENS CLEAN
    ELECTIONS COMMISSION convened at 9:33 a.m. on April 30,
 2  2020, at the State of Arizona, Clean Elections
    Commission, 1616 West Adams, Conference Room, Phoenix,
 3  Arizona, in the presence of the following Board members:
           Mr. Galen D. Paton, Chairperson (Telephonic)
 4         Mr. Mark S. Kimble (Telephonic)
           Mr. Damien R. Meyer (Telephonic)
 5         Steve M. Titla (Telephonic)
           Ms. Amy B. Chan (Telephonic)
 6 
    OTHERS PRESENT:
 7 
           Thomas M. Collins, Executive Director
 8         Paula Thomas, Executive Officer
           Gina Roberts, Voter Education Director,
 9         (Telephonic)
           Mike Becker, Policy Director,
10         (Telephonic)
           Alec Shaffer, Web Content Manager
11         Julian Arndt, Executive Support Specialist,
           (Telephonic)
12         Kara Karlson, Assistant Attorney General
   
13 
   
14 
   
15 
   
16 
   
17 
   
18 
   
19 
   
20 
   
21 
   
22 
   
23 
   
24 
   
25 

09:33:05-09:33:51 Page 3

 1      P R O C E E D I N G
 2  
 3      MR. COLLINS: So, Chairman Paton, since
 4  you're on the line, if you want to go ahead.  I
 5  guess -- I guess, we'll kick it to you to call us to --
 6      CHAIRMAN PATON: No, that's okay, if
 7  somebody else can do that.
 8      MR. COLLINS: Okay.
 9      CHAIRMAN PATON: I, kind of, hurried and
10  whatever --
11      MR. COLLINS: Okay.
12      CHAIRMAN PATON: -- and got in the car.
13      MR. COLLINS: Okay.  Sounds good.
14      Commissioner --
15      CHAIRMAN PATON: (Inaudible.)
16      MR. COLLINS: No, no problem.
17      Commissioner Chan, I'm just going to kick
18  it to you to call the meeting to order, please, and to
19  call the roll.
20      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Sure.
21      MR. COLLINS: Or ask the commissioners to
22  identify themselves for the record, rather.
23      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Of course.  Okay.
24      So, I'll call the meeting to order.  It is
25      9:32 a.m., April 30th, 2020, and I'll call the meeting

09:33:56-09:34:39 Page 4

 1  of the Citizens Clean Elections Commission to order.
 2  We will now take attendance.
 3      Could each Commissioner, please, state your
 4  presence for the record?
 5      Mr. -- Commissioner Paton, why don't we
 6  start with you.
 7      CHAIRMAN PATON: I am here.
 8      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Commissioner Titla, are
 9  you on the line?
10      COMMISSIONER TITLA: Yeah.  Good morning.
11  Here.
12      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Excellent.
13      Commissioner Meyer?
14      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Present.
15      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Excellent.
16      Commissioner Kimble?
17      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: Hi.  Here.
18      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Okay.  Great.  And I am
19  here, as well, Commissioner Chan.
20      MR. COLLINS: Did we get Commissioner
21  Titla?
22      MS. KARLSON: Yes.
23      MR. COLLINS: We did.  Okay.
24      COMMISSIONER CHAN: I believe I called on
25  him second.

09:34:39-09:35:26 Page 5

 1      MR. COLLINS: Okay.  Sorry.  I apologize.
 2      COMMISSIONER CHAN: No.  Thank you.  No.
 3  Thank you for helping me because, honestly, it's a
 4  little difficult with the phone and not being there in
 5  person.  Just it's hard.
 6      MR. COLLINS: There are --
 7      COMMISSIONER CHAN: And I'm actually
 8  writing everybody down right now.
 9      All right.  So, moving on to the main
10  agenda -- and, Tom, please feel free to stop me if I --
11      MR. COLLINS: No, no.
12      COMMISSIONER CHAN: -- go out of -- you
13  know, go out of order or do anything wrong.
14      MR. COLLINS: Sure.
15      COMMISSIONER CHAN: So, that takes care of
16  Item I.
17      Moving on to Item II, discussion and
18  possible action on Commission minutes for the
19  February 27, 2020 and March 16, 2020 meeting.
20      Tom, can we take care of these as a slate?
21      MR. COLLINS: Yes, I think.  As long as the
22  motion includes both, I think that would be fine.
23      COMMISSIONER CHAN: All right.  Is there a
24  motion?
25      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: This is --

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(1) Pages 2 - 5



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Transcript of Proceedings / Public Meeting
April 30, 2020

09:35:39-09:36:31 Page 6

 1      COMMISSIONER TITLA: I motion.
 2      MS. KARLSON: That was garbled, for the
 3  court reporter.
 4      MR. COLLINS: So, if -- Commissioner Chan,
 5  if you could just recognize someone from -- someone --
 6  either recognize Commissioner Titla or --
 7      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Sure.  Why don't I
 8  recognize Commissioner Titla.  I think I heard him
 9  first.
10      Commissioner Titla, did you have a motion
11  regarding --
12      COMMISSIONER TITLA: Yeah, I motion to
13  approve the minutes as a slate.
14      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Okay, for February --
15      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: Commissioner Kimble.
16  Second.
17      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Thank you.
18      All right.  We have a motion and a second
19  to approve the Commission minutes for February 27, 2020
20  and March 16, 2020.
21      So, all those -- we'll go ahead and take a
22  roll call vote.  I believe we have to do that, right,
23  Tom?
24      MR. COLLINS: It definitely makes an easier
25  record, especially when you're on the phone.

09:36:32-09:37:22 Page 7

 1      MS. KARLSON: That's correct.
 2      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Absolutely.  Thank you.
 3      All right.  In that case, let's go ahead
 4  and I'll call on Commissioner Paton first.
 5      How do you vote?
 6      CHAIRMAN PATON: Aye.
 7      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Commissioner Titla, how
 8  do you vote?
 9      COMMISSIONER TITLA: Aye.
10      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Commissioner Meyer?
11      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Aye.
12      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Commissioner Kimble?
13      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: Aye.
14      COMMISSIONER CHAN: And I'm Commissioner
15  Chan, and I vote aye.
16      All right.  And moving on -- so, that's
17  Item II.
18      Moving on to Item III, I will -- that's
19  discussion and possible action on Executive Director's
20  report and legislative report.
21      Tom, can I turn that over to you now?
22      MR. COLLINS: Yes, please.  Yes.
23      COMMISSIONER CHAN: All right.  Thank you.
24      MR. COLLINS: Commissioner Chan and
25  Commissioners, I just want to -- we tried to cover a

09:37:30-09:39:23 Page 8

 1  lot of -- a lot of materials, a lot of -- there are a
 2  lot of updates and new reports.  So, I'm happy to take
 3  questions.
 4      There is a local election coming up here
 5  in -- next month, on May 19th.  They're local, and they
 6  are in cities in select counties.  We have all that
 7  information on the Commission's website.
 8      As you can see, that Avery is continuing to
 9  do outreach as events have shifted to online -- and I
10  think that's good -- and has kept abreast of A -- of
11  the DHS -- the Arizona Department of Health Services'
12  guidance to election officials thus far.
13      Just so everybody knows, I think this
14  happened just before our last meeting.  Governor Ducey
15  had declared -- issued -- I think, he declared a state
16  of emergency on the 11th.  He subsequently issued an
17  executive order.  He modified that yesterday but -- but
18  continued it in force.  And I'm happy to get you the
19  details on that if you -- if you would like details on
20  the modifications.
21      We have been operating the agency with --
22  with -- consistent with that guidance.  So, we've
23  had -- we've expanded the telework but have kept the
24  office open during business hours.  And we are, you
25  know, working.  We've -- Paula has been able to obtain,

09:39:29-09:40:48 Page 9

 1  you know, some of the now, sort of, standard issues,
 2  things we'll need to run the office.  And Paula has
 3  been really key here in keeping us abreast of policy
 4  and procedural changes regarding how the State is
 5  operating.  You know, this is -- the COVID-19 situation
 6  is, obviously, widespread.  We have a narrow piece of
 7  it, but it's, also, something that's important for us
 8  to keep on top of.
 9      So, that's where we are administratively.
10  I don't know if anyone has any questions about that
11  specifically.
12      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Tom, can I just make a
13  quick comment?  And, then, if any other commissioners
14  want to chime in, they can let me know and we can
15  recognize them.  This Commissioner Chan.
16      I just want to say thank you to you and the
17  staff for your work while this is going on.  Just
18  speaking for myself personally, going through this with
19  COVID-19 has been extremely traumatic.  I mean, I think
20  my family has, kind of, adjusted now to a new normal
21  and, you know, we're feeling a little more balanced
22  now, but initially it was a pretty traumatic adjustment
23  to schools at home and the fact that we're social
24  distancing.
25      And I just want to say I admire you and the

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(2) Pages 6 - 9



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Transcript of Proceedings / Public Meeting
April 30, 2020

09:40:51-09:42:21 Page 10

 1  staff for what you're doing.  I'm so pleased that
 2  you've been able to continue to work at the Commission
 3  from home, and I'm impressed that you've been able to
 4  keep the office open.  I'm -- I'm very grateful for
 5  that, and I hope that you are being -- keeping very
 6  safe and maintaining, you know, social distancing even
 7  while the person is coming in to keep the office open.
 8      So, I just hope everyone who works there
 9  knows that on behalf of myself, and I don't know if any
10  other commissioners want to chime in on that.  I mean,
11  the world has really changed since the last time we
12  met.  So, thank you very much.
13      COMMISSIONER TITLA: Yeah.  This is Steve
14  Titla.  Yeah, I'd like to -- I'd like to, you know,
15  join in that statement to commend the staff and the
16  director for doing a good job and continued outreach.
17  We still have an election -- we still have an election
18  coming up, I think, in November.  So, we need to keep
19  people, get the word out to the people and the entire
20  state, to the four corners of the state.  We need
21  people for that because people are going to get
22  confused due to the pandemic going on right now.
23      People are going to wonder are we still
24  having an election or how are we going to vote, where
25  are we going to vote, and that kind of thing.  They're

09:42:24-09:44:11 Page 11

 1  going to be confused.  So, they're going to be looking
 2  for clarification, and I think that's where the Clean
 3  Elections will come in and we can help clarify.
 4      Regarding the pandemic, Tom, what are the
 5  modifications that were stated by the governor
 6  yesterday, you said, but what are those specific
 7  modifications?
 8      MR. COLLINS: So, Commissioner Chan,
 9  Commissioner Titla, they are -- this is as
10  comprehensive as I can do, I think.  Beginning next
11  week, there will be an expansion of, essentially, the
12  definition of "essential services" -- goods and
13  services to folks who are selling goods.  So, retail
14  establishments will be able to reopen under certain
15  distancing and safety guidelines.
16      The governor, also, said that he will be
17  considering and looking at the issue of restaurants
18  related to -- that will -- and that that plan will be
19  modified but will be forthcoming in the following week.
20  His -- he wants to modify that, he said yesterday at
21  his press conference, but he doesn't want to do it too
22  quickly.
23      He has two -- two statements associated
24  with that, which I think are -- for what it's worth, I
25  think, makes sense.  One, that, you know, obviously,

09:44:16-09:46:00 Page 12

 1  we've done substantial work as a state to try to keep
 2  the level of -- of this down, notwithstanding, you
 3  know, obviously, you know, the northeast corner of the
 4  state, obviously, the Navajo reservation and the -- and
 5  a couple of other specific areas but -- and, then, with
 6  respect to restaurants, you know, he said that, you
 7  know, if we were to follow some other states and opened
 8  with the, sort of, like, 25 percent occupancy cap,
 9  you'd, basically, cause restaurants to go out of
10  business faster which, of course, is something that is
11  in his background and he knows.
12      I think -- I think -- I think that the
13  retail is probably the biggest -- the biggest one so
14  far.  They -- I think the order -- the order did
15  maintain the travel restrictions with respect to
16  self-quarantining for folks who have come from
17  New York, New Jersey or Connecticut, and then -- I
18  think that's -- those are the highlights.
19      You know, we will -- we'll see what the
20  next steps are.  He has been briefing the press about
21  once or twice a week, and those are typically carried
22  on the ADHS YouTube page, which we can, also, get you
23  the link to, but I would think the -- I think the
24  highlight is the reopen retail under the restrictions
25  with respect to spacing and safe -- you know, health

09:46:04-09:47:32 Page 13

 1  safety regulations.
 2      COMMISSIONER TITLA: Okay.  Thank you.
 3      MR. COLLINS: So, we have a -- I wanted to
 4  cover -- and just a quick note.  We had an Item VI
 5  related to legal matters.  We think this is all wrapped
 6  up in the report, actually, in the Executive Director's
 7  report.  We don't anticipate having to do Item VI on
 8  your agenda, unless someone wants to.
 9      We have -- in the outstanding legal
10  matters, we've combined two categories of legal
11  matters:  those which we've had an interest or followed
12  and those that affect elections, in general.  Some of
13  you may know, just as a general matter, Kara and others
14  at the AG's office are involved in the candidate
15  challenge period for legislative, statewide,
16  congressional, county and precinct committee offices
17  right now.  So, that's happening in Maricopa Superior
18  Court, largely.
19      You know, we have -- we have an oral
20  argument date for the Arizona Advocacy Network v. State
21  case.  That's going to be at the end of June.  The
22  State in that ABOR case, we've followed.  They had
23  arguments, I want to say, last week.  So, we'll see a
24  decision on that at some point.
25      The Attorney General's Office filed a

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(3) Pages 10 - 13



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Transcript of Proceedings / Public Meeting
April 30, 2020

09:47:37-09:48:42 Page 14

 1  petition for serve in the -- in the U.S. Supreme Court
 2  related to a Ninth Circuit opinion that its main effect
 3  was to strike down an Arizona law that restricts the
 4  collection of mailed ballots.  So, that will be --
 5  that's on file now.
 6      MS. KARLSON: And --
 7      MR. COLLINS: Sorry.
 8      MS. KARLSON: Tom, I'm sorry to interrupt
 9  you, but the other big part of that lawsuit strikes
10  down the precinct --
11      MR. COLLINS: Oh, right.
12      MS. KARLSON: -- requirements that will
13  have impact on or could, potentially, have impact on
14  election officials, but basically, Arizona law for the
15  last --
16      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Wait.  I'm sorry.  This
17  is Commissioner Chan.
18      Is that Kara speaking?
19      MR. COLLINS: Yes.  Sorry.  Yes.
20      MS. KARLSON: Yes.  This is Kara Karlson.
21      COMMISSIONER CHAN: That's okay.  I just --
22  thank you.
23      MS. KARLSON: Arizona law, for the last 50
24  years, allowed for -- or required people to vote in
25  their proper precinct, and the Ninth Circuit en banc

09:48:47-09:50:10 Page 15

 1  decision, also, struck down that requirement.  So,
 2  counties that -- I mean, the laws have been amended
 3  since then to allow counties to make a decision to move
 4  to vote centers.  So, there are certain rural counties,
 5  specifically, that have moved to vote centers, but the
 6  counties that have -- that are currently reliant on
 7  voters showing up at the correct polling place and
 8  those counties have technology specific to that, you
 9  know, that could affect the elections administrators if
10  that -- if the Ninth Circuit en banc holding stands.
11      MR. COLLINS: Okay.  So, that's -- yes.
12  That's -- yeah, that's -- so, that will be -- that will
13  be interesting.
14      Another case --
15      CHAIRMAN PATON: Tom?
16      MR. COLLINS: Yes.
17      CHAIRMAN PATON: Tom, this is -- if I
18  could, this is Commissioner Paton.
19      MR. COLLINS: Yes.
20      CHAIRMAN PATON: I have a question about
21  that.
22      Is that going to change for the November
23  election?  And if there are changes, I guess, maybe we
24  should trumpet out those changes any way we can so that
25  most people -- so people will know about those changes.

09:50:17-09:51:27 Page 16

 1      MR. COLLINS: Yes, Commissioner -- or
 2  Chairman Paton.  I think that -- yeah, we -- we -- we
 3  can.  The one piece of information that I haven't had a
 4  chance to clarify yet is whether or not the State
 5  sought a stay.  My -- my memory was that the State
 6  sought a stay in the Ninth Circuit for purposes of the
 7  PPE, the Presidential Preference Election.  Because
 8  this decision came out days before the Presidential
 9  Preference Election, I don't know if that stay expires
10  or not.
11      So, yes, once we have that information
12  nailed down, we can -- we can -- we can put that out so
13  people have a clear understanding of what is -- of what
14  is -- the law is on that.  Obviously, we want to be
15  absolutely correct because the -- especially on the
16  ballot collection piece because it's a ballot
17  collection -- unauthorized ballot collection is a
18  felony, in theory.  So, we don't want to -- we want to
19  be as precise as possible.
20      CHAIRMAN PATON: You would think that --
21      MS. KARLSON: And --
22      CHAIRMAN PATON: You would think that --
23  this is Commissioner Paton.  You would think that
24  something of this magnitude would go to the Supreme
25  Court even before that, I mean, the election.

09:51:31-09:53:11 Page 17

 1      MR. COLLINS: I'll defer to Kara on that.
 2      MS. KARLSON: Commissioner Chan,
 3  Commissioner Paton, the real issue, I think, at this
 4  point with mounting a voter education campaign is that
 5  this case is still in flux so much and we don't know
 6  when we will have finality, whether it's from the en
 7  blanc Ninth Circuit's opinion or if the Supreme Court
 8  takes it, you know, or if there's a stay in place.
 9      So, due to the fluctuating nature of this,
10  I think that it's fair to be concerned about putting
11  out statements that you then have to, you know, revise
12  repeatedly as this moves, probably rather
13  expeditiously, through the courts.  I mean, as long as
14  I've been involved in this case, it's been -- it's
15  moved very rapidly.  So, hopefully, we'll have finality
16  soon.  Do I know for certain that it will occur before
17  the 2020 general, particularly given the changes in how
18  everyone has been operating under COVID-19?  I can't --
19  I can't make a prediction on that.
20      So, I hope I have answered your question
21  without actually answering your question.
22      CHAIRMAN PATON: Yes.
23      MS. KARLSON: My apologies.
24      CHAIRMAN PATON: No.  It's, obviously, in
25  flux, and this is so -- this is Commissioner Paton --

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(4) Pages 14 - 17



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Transcript of Proceedings / Public Meeting
April 30, 2020

09:53:16-09:54:37 Page 18

 1  it is so -- you know, a big presidential election.  You
 2  would think that we would have finality rather -- you
 3  know, several months, you would think, before the
 4  election so that would give us time to explain what the
 5  final, you know, procedures are going to be.
 6      MR. COLLINS: I mean, Commissioner Chan,
 7  Commissioner Paton, I think that, yeah, having, you
 8  know, like, Kara work on some of these cases right at
 9  the -- at the -- right as election season is
10  approaching, that's certainly always a hope.  There is
11  a body of case law that says that that should be the
12  way things are done.
13      MS. KARLSON: And yet.
14      MR. COLLINS: But -- yeah, but -- so,
15  we'll -- but we'll see.  I think, I mean, Commissioner
16  Chan, also, has a background -- has worked on some of
17  those matters -- a lot of those matters, actually.
18      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Yeah.  This is --
19  Commissioner Chan.  I was just going to pipe up and say
20  I remember -- I can't remember what the issue was, but
21  I remember a case where we were sure, when I was at the
22  Secretary of State, they had to decide this case in
23  time for the election to be conducted with a law either
24  in place or not in place.  Like, we had to know.  And
25  instead -- and I think it was the Supreme -- I don't

09:54:40-09:55:59 Page 19

 1  remember, but it was, like, either the Arizona Supreme
 2  Court or the U.S. Supreme Court.  I mean, it was
 3  definitely, like, the final arbiter of the matter.  And
 4  they just kept it.  Like, they just didn't decide it,
 5  you know.  And so, we were, like, what, you know.
 6      And so, that definitely happens.  The
 7  courts sometimes disappoint us in that way.  You know,
 8  they, kind of, leave us hanging with no real answer
 9  unless there's -- the answer would be whether there's a
10  stay in place, as Tom is going to let us know.
11      But, anyway, that's my two cents.
12      MS. KARLSON: And, Commissioner Chan and
13  all the commissioners, just to give you guys a little
14  bit of a procedural background on Feldman and what --
15  it's known by a different name now.  So, please, excuse
16  me for referring to the case that it was called four
17  years ago when it first started, but the procedural
18  oddity of this, they -- the Ninth Circuit issued an
19  order striking Arizona law the Friday before the
20  election, at least in regards to the ballot collection
21  ban, despite the unanimous Supreme Court's decision
22  known as the Purcell principle that you cannot change
23  election law right before the election.
24      And we thought that was particularly
25  important, given the fact that the vast majority of

09:56:01-09:57:38 Page 20

 1  Arizona ballots had already been cast.  It took the
 2  Supreme -- the United States Supreme Court
 3  approximately 22 hours to strike that down, but I say
 4  that -- and Commissioner Chan was actually a witness on
 5  that case.
 6      I just give that contextual background to
 7  say that this case procedurally is a case that I've
 8  gotten called from other lawyers to try to explain what
 9  happened because it is just very convoluted.  It's a
10  very interesting case from a civil procedure
11  standpoint, but I don't know -- yeah, that's part of
12  the reason that I'm so cagy on trying to predict
13  anything about that case.
14      MR. COLLINS: Okay.  So, yeah, it's a very
15  high-interest case to begin with.
16      A couple of other cases that, I think, are
17  worth being aware of and, you know -- and, obviously,
18  we've had a chance to talk a little bit about these
19  with Kara -- oh, my apologies, Commissioners.  The Voto
20  Latino v. Hobbs has to do with -- I think the main
21  issue there, if I'm correct, is the -- is the deadline
22  for the return of ballots.
23      The relief that the Plaintiffs are seeking
24  there is, essentially, that rather than have your
25  ballot delivered no later than the close of the polls;

09:57:42-09:59:13 Page 21

 1  that is, 7:00 p.m. on election day, they seek,
 2  essentially, a court order saying that that deadline
 3  should be made a postmark by the -- by the -- by
 4  election day and that five further days from the
 5  postmark for the ballot to arrive at the election
 6  place.
 7      And Kara has been working on this case, and
 8  I filed -- did I file a thing in this case?
 9      MS. KARLSON: Yes, you did.  You filed a
10  declaration.
11      MR. COLLINS: I probably did, yeah.
12      MS. KARLSON: And Commissioner Chan and the
13  others commissioners, I'd just like to add a slight
14  wrinkle.  Not just five days afterwards but five
15  business days afterwards, which, as we all know,
16  it's -- you know, when you are talking about an
17  election, that's seven days.  So, what they effectually
18  want or effectively want is a postmark by election day
19  received seven days after the election, and that's --
20  that is the lawsuit that they are seeking.
21      MR. COLLINS: And, Commissioners, just to
22  give you a sense of the procedural issue there and to,
23  sort of, anticipate, at least, some of the questions
24  you might have, the PI briefing and the PI hearing on
25  that case is not going to be held until the end of June

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(5) Pages 18 - 21



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Transcript of Proceedings / Public Meeting
April 30, 2020

09:59:17-10:00:38 Page 22

 1  and early --
 2      MS. KARLSON: End of May.
 3      MR. COLLINS: End of May.  I'm sorry.  End
 4  of May.
 5      MS. KARLSON: Excuse me.
 6      MR. COLLINS: No, no, no.  I knew it was
 7  the end of something, and it was only going to be May
 8  or June.  So, it was a 50/50 chance.  In the end of
 9  May.
10      And just to put that in perspective, early
11  ballots will be sent out, essentially, one month after
12  that, really, because it was sent out on July 8th.  So,
13  again, this is one of the -- this is a case where the
14  lawsuit is right up against the actual casting of
15  ballots in terms of its -- in terms of trying to get
16  relief and, then, presumably, expedited appellate
17  matters.
18      So, it's a -- that one, too, I think,
19  will -- will be -- you know, regardless of the
20  outcome -- and I don't want to anticipate the outcome
21  too much, but that one, too, will be, you know, a
22  last-minute thing that we'll be keeping our eyes on
23  because in the event -- because -- especially, for the
24  August primary.  There's, obviously, more time before
25  the -- before the general election.

10:00:40-10:02:06 Page 23

 1      MS. KARLSON: Well, and to be clear, I
 2  don't believe they're seeking that relief for the
 3  August primary due to the issues --
 4      MR. COLLINS: Okay.
 5      MS. KARLSON: -- of timing.  They would
 6  just be seeking it for the November general election.
 7  And, fortunately, because I'm lead counsel on the case,
 8  I will definitely keep the Commission apprised of
 9  anything that has occurred.  We have filed a motion to
10  dismiss.  The Plaintiffs have filed a preliminary
11  injunction motion that we are responding to.
12      And just to get everyone an idea of how
13  many early ballots are rejected or, at least, were
14  rejected in 2018 for failure to arrive on time, it was
15  approximately 2,500 out of over 1.7 or 1.8 million.
16      MR. COLLINS: So, that's not a lot
17  percentagewise.
18      MS. KARLSON: Percentagewise, it is almost
19  zero.
20      MR. COLLINS: Okay.  And, then, finally,
21  the other -- the last case that we identified is a case
22  called Miracle v. Hobbs, which has to do with the right
23  to petition under the Arizona Constitution and how it
24  interacts with the First and Fourteenth Amendments.
25  Essentially, the Plaintiff's argument there is that the

10:02:11-10:03:16 Page 24

 1  various procedural restrictions the legislature has
 2  placed on top of the constitutional process for
 3  circulating and resolving issues around the initiative
 4  and referendum petitions are impinging on the First and
 5  Fourteenth Amendment rights of the Plaintiffs.
 6      They were denied preliminary relief some
 7  months ago there on appeal, I believe, from the denial
 8  of preliminary relief.  I don't think they got a
 9  stay -- I don't know if they got a stay from that.
10      MS. KARLSON: And from a motion to dismiss.
11  Many of their claims were actually dismissed.
12      MR. COLLINS: Oh, that's right.  That's
13  right.  That's right.  There was a -- there was a
14  motion to dismiss.  So -- so, yeah, I think only one of
15  their -- I think only their Fourteenth Amendment claim
16  survived the motion to dismiss.
17      MS. KARLSON: First Amendment claim.
18      MR. COLLINS: Or the First Amendment.
19  Okay.  So -- sorry.  So, to rehash that, just real
20  quickly to be more clear, let me recap.  The challenge
21  is to the processes the legislature has put on top of
22  the constitutional processes for referendum and
23  initiative.  The Plaintiffs had many other claims
24  dismissed.  One is alive, but they are appealing the
25  dismissal, in addition to the denial of preliminary

10:03:20-10:04:29 Page 25

 1  relief, and we will keep you posted on that.
 2      That will, theoretically -- well, that case
 3  will become moot, for all intents and purposes, at some
 4  point.
 5      MS. KARLSON: That case was just argued
 6  before --
 7      MR. COLLINS: Right.
 8      MS. KARLSON: -- the Ninth Circuit.
 9      MR. COLLINS: No, I understand, but I mean,
10  as a practical matter, July 2nd is the deadline for
11  these petition signatures, if they are out there, to
12  get submitted.  So, it's -- it might -- you know, it's
13  a -- it is what it is.  I don't know.
14      So, those are the main ones we felt like
15  folks needed to -- folks needed to be aware of.  I'm
16  going to ask Kara, just real quick, if there's any
17  others you want to mention.  I don't think we -- I
18  don't think -- but -- and as Kara mentioned, she's been
19  leading -- she's been leading most of these cases and
20  led what's now Brnovich v. DNC at the -- at the trial
21  court level.  So, she's -- so, we are -- we're in a
22  good position to be well-informed on these matters, and
23  I really appreciate her being here today to help me
24  make sure we get you the right information.
25      The legislature -- real quick -- and I know

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(6) Pages 22 - 25



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Transcript of Proceedings / Public Meeting
April 30, 2020

10:04:35-10:05:45 Page 26

 1  we're -- I took a little longer than I probably should
 2  have, but the legislature -- the legislature is
 3  recessed.  It's not clear when the legislature will
 4  come back.  There was a discussion in the press around
 5  the leadership suggesting that, perhaps, the
 6  legislature simply come back and sine die, you know,
 7  and adjourn for the session.  The members -- a majority
 8  of the members indicated that was not their preference.
 9      So, we're, sort of, in a holding pattern
10  there.  There are two bills that we've been watching
11  throughout the legislative session that are still alive
12  in so far as the session continues.  So, we'll keep you
13  informed on that.
14      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Tom?
15      MR. COLLINS: Yes.
16      COMMISSIONER CHAN: This is Commissioner
17  Chan.
18      MR. COLLINS: Please.
19      COMMISSIONER CHAN: A quick question
20  regarding the legislature.
21      Do you know the date they're coming back?
22      MR. COLLINS: No, no.  They had --
23  Commissioner Chan -- sorry.  They had said -- we had
24  heard -- I think we had heard Monday last and then we
25  heard May 1st, and I haven't heard a date since the

10:05:49-10:07:03 Page 27

 1  last discussion, since the discussion about simply
 2  returning and adjourning went over without any
 3  resolution.  So --
 4      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Okay.
 5      MR. COLLINS: So, we don't know.
 6      COMMISSIONER CHAN: I ask because I have
 7  been very passionate about making a change for this
 8  year to all mail voting due to the pandemic.  I was
 9  concerned about the PPE taking place in polling places,
10  and I don't know what the actual specifics are.  You
11  know, there was one story about a man who voted and
12  contracted the coronavirus who died, I believe, here in
13  Phoenix.  I've seen some of the information coming out
14  of Wisconsin, you know, because the coronavirus
15  pandemic has, kind of, been going on a little longer.
16  I think more people were infected at the time they
17  conducted their Presidential Preference Election up
18  there.
19      I am personally very concerned.  We're
20  going to vote in August.  I think August 4th is the
21  date or is it August 6th.
22      MR. COLLINS: Yes, it is August 4th.
23      COMMISSIONER CHAN: I can't remember.
24  August 4th maybe.  I've been encouraging people, using
25  my social media, to register to become permanent early

10:07:06-10:08:21 Page 28

 1  voters for the time being, but I'm only one person.
 2  And, I guess, what I'm trying to point out here is that
 3  even if I've been encouraging people or even if we all
 4  encourage everyone who votes to enroll on the permanent
 5  early voter list, I'm very concerned about our election
 6  workers and pollworkers who -- even if everybody is on
 7  the permanent early voter list, they're still going to
 8  have to put on an election together.  And I think it's
 9  kind of hard to be socially distant --
10      THE OPERATOR: Leaving the meeting:  Mike
11  Becker.
12      COMMISSIONER CHAN: You use touchscreen,
13  et cetera, during an election.  And what, I guess, I'm
14  trying to say is -- and I don't know if it's okay to
15  bring it up and, if not, you can stop me and we can put
16  it on another agenda, but do we, as the Commission,
17  want to take a policy position on this for this year,
18  discuss it, as far as asking the legislature to
19  consider doing this this year?  I'm sorry to, kind of,
20  you know, bring this up over the phone without being
21  face to face.
22      MR. COLLINS: No, no.  No, Commissioner
23  Chan, let me -- let me answer that question in two
24  ways.  The first is that, you know, we do have room to
25  discuss that in the context of the voter education

10:08:24-10:09:42 Page 29

 1  agenda item which deals with a lot of our contingency
 2  planning around that.  You know, with respect to the
 3  legislature, generally, the -- and we can discuss that,
 4  I think, here and there, but just to -- just to answer
 5  the question, is the president of the Senate has
 6  said --
 7      THE OPERATOR: Joining the meeting:  Mike
 8  Becker.
 9      MR. COLLINS: -- has said expressly that
10  the -- that a ballot by mail without a request for the
11  state primary and the general election is not something
12  that she would be inclined to put on the floor.
13      COMMISSIONER CHAN: I know that.
14      MR. COLLINS: So, I --
15      COMMISSIONER CHAN: I -- I'm sorry.  Go
16  ahead, Tom.
17      MR. COLLINS: No, I guess, it would be
18  probably easier to put this in the context of our voter
19  education discussion because our discussions with the
20  Secretary's office have included that topic.  So, it
21  would be easier to put that in that context for me,
22  anyways, if that's okay.
23      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Okay.  I guess, I'm
24  happy to talk about it in the context of voter
25  education.  The reason I bring it up in terms of

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(7) Pages 26 - 29



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Transcript of Proceedings / Public Meeting
April 30, 2020

10:09:43-10:11:06 Page 30

 1  legislative stuff is because, again, you know, even if
 2  we educate all the voters on going to PEVL for the year
 3  and then taking ourselves off once we get past this
 4  thing, hopefully sooner rather than later, just to
 5  maintain their safety as much as possible so they don't
 6  have to interact with other people or limit it as much
 7  as possible.
 8      So, with the legislature not making this
 9  change is putting people in danger.  It's requiring
10  people to go in public and interact with people.  And I
11  have a friend who voted in the PPE in February and
12  blurted on her Facebook how aware she was of every
13  single thing she had to touch, every single person she
14  had to interact with, touching her driver's license,
15  handing it back to her, all of that stuff and the
16  touchscreen, et cetera.  So, even back then when this
17  was just, kind of, unrolling and still taking shape
18  with the coronavirus, I am still finding out that
19  voters were uncomfortable.
20      And I think it's irresponsible of the
21  legislature not to take on this stuff and I'm sorry
22  because I know I tend to be a rabble-rouser, I guess.
23  I just thought I'd bring it up as far as whether we
24  wanted to do it since -- (inaudible) -- against us, if
25  that's what we want, anyway.  But, I'm happy to talk

10:11:09-10:12:08 Page 31

 1  about it in voter education.  I just wanted to mention
 2  it in front of the other commissioners, as well.
 3      Thank you.
 4      MR. COLLINS: With respect to -- yeah.  No,
 5  thank you.  And just to clarify, Commissioner Chan,
 6  with respect to the notice on the -- on the agenda,
 7  we're in a position where, you know, we can be given
 8  direction to do something, but I suspect that on that
 9  issue, we would want to have a discussion and actually
10  have a -- have a vote.  And we aren't really equipped
11  for that with the way this agenda is noticed.
12      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Okay.  And thank you,
13  Tom.  And I understand that.  Okay.
14      MR. COLLINS: And, then -- that's it.  So,
15  I mean, that's -- that's really all I have.  I do want
16  to note we have 38 participating candidates.  We've
17  funded 11.
18      Things are going smoothly with the
19  Governor's Regulatory Review Commission in terms of the
20  terms we've, sort of, come to, at least informally.
21  And that's all -- that's all I have.
22      So, I mean, without any -- without any
23  further ado, that concludes my report.
24      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Thank you.
25      Does anyone have any other questions or

10:12:10-10:13:34 Page 32

 1  comments for Tom?
 2      CHAIRMAN PATON: I do.  This is
 3  Commissioner Paton.
 4      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Okay.  Commissioner
 5  Paton, go ahead.
 6      CHAIRMAN PATON: So, where do we stand on
 7  nominating or appointing new commissioners?  Do we
 8  know?
 9      MR. COLLINS: Commissioner Chan and
10  Commissioner Paton, no.  I mean, we -- I'll be honest
11  with you.  I have not checked in with the Governors's
12  office on that for some time.  We are -- I mean,
13  honestly, I don't think that that's going to be top of
14  mind for either the Governor's office or the Secretary
15  of State's office for -- certainly in the near future.
16      I mean, obviously, we, as staff, appreciate
17  and are happy to have, you know, the three
18  commissioners who have been holding over -- or continue
19  to hold over, and we appreciate the, you know,
20  generosity of the time -- your time in doing so, but
21  Commissioner Paton, I don't anticipate, in view of the
22  election itself and then, on top of that, the COVID
23  situation.  I just -- I just can't imagine we're going
24  to hear anything from them, and I can't -- and I have
25  not -- I haven't -- I have not asked since the last

10:13:37-10:14:49 Page 33

 1  time I asked, which was, I think, in -- which was in --
 2  which was about -- about a month -- probably a month
 3  and a half ago, before this all turned to what it is.
 4      CHAIRMAN PATON: Okay.  Thank you.
 5      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Commissioner Paton,
 6  this is Commissioner Chan.  And you know how I feel
 7  about it, but I will say that I've grown a little more
 8  contemplative over this past month and a half, and I
 9  have come to the conclusion that I should be grateful
10  for the Commission we have.  And I think similar to
11  what Tom just said.  I'll just echo my extreme thanks
12  to Commissioner Titla, first of all, for his being a
13  holdover because he's been here the longest.  So, thank
14  you, Commissioner Titla.
15      Commissioner Kimble and Meyer -- well, let
16  me think.  Meyer, I think you've been here longer than
17  Kimble.
18      Kimble, you just aged out or timed out, I
19  guess.  So, thank you to all three.
20      And, you know, hopefully, Commissioner
21  Paton, you'll stick around, too, next year, depending
22  on how this goes.  And we'll just continue to have the
23  fab five here for a while.
24      CHAIRMAN PATON: The cabal.
25      COMMISSIONER CHAN: All right.  So, are

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(8) Pages 30 - 33



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Transcript of Proceedings / Public Meeting
April 30, 2020

10:14:51-10:15:58 Page 34

 1  there any other questions for Tom on this item?
 2      (No response.)
 3      COMMISSIONER CHAN: If not, I'll take us on
 4  to Item IV for discussion, and I don't think staff is
 5  recommending any actions.  It's discussion and possible
 6  action on voter education, including, A, debate format
 7  change and, B, ballot by mail and pollworker
 8  recruitment campaign.
 9      So, is Gina Roberts available?
10      MS. ROBERTS: Yes, Commissioner Chan,
11  Commissioners.  This is Gina.
12      All right.  Good morning.
13      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Hi.
14      MS. ROBERTS: Hi.  Good morning.  And I
15  think what we have on the agenda here is to provide the
16  Commission some updates on how staff has adapted some
17  of our voter education plans in light of COVID-19 and
18  the new norm.
19      So, first up, we do want to share the
20  changes that we've made to our debates.  This -- for
21  some background context, with the debate process,
22  historically what we would do is we would hold
23  on-the-ground debates at every legislative district.
24  So, what that meant was staff, candidates, voters and
25  all of our partners, we would be traveling to each

10:16:02-10:17:16 Page 35

 1  legislative district and we'd secure facilities, like
 2  at hotels or libraries, schools, many of which are no
 3  longer available right now, and we would have debates
 4  in the evening, kind of, that were open to the public.
 5      We would record those so they can be
 6  available post debate but -- and, again, in light of
 7  COVID-19, we saw that that wasn't really feasible
 8  anymore just in terms of being able to practice social
 9  distancing.  And in an effort to reduce exposure to
10  candidates, voters and staff, we transitioned to a
11  virtual debate process.  And so, what that looks like
12  is we are utilizing the Zoom platform for our
13  candidates and the moderators, and we will conduct the
14  debate through Zoom but live stream it through our
15  YouTube page.  And that's how voters are able to view
16  it in real time.
17      So, voters would access the Clean Elections
18  YouTube page where they could see the debate occurring.
19  We were very cognizant of the need to make sure that
20  voters could interact as much as possible with the
21  debate.  So, voters are able to email questions that
22  they may have for the candidates or call the office and
23  submit those questions ahead of the debate and, then,
24  during the debate, the public can actually either
25  email, call in or text their questions throughout the

10:17:19-10:18:35 Page 36

 1  debate.  So, we would have staff available to collect
 2  those and get those over to the moderator so they can
 3  be answered real time.
 4      So, we did provide several, kind of,
 5  heads-up messages to the candidates letting them know
 6  that we were transitioning to this process, and I'm
 7  happy to say so far we have not received any type of
 8  concerns from candidates about this change.  So, we do
 9  have our very first debate this evening, and so far,
10  again, it seems as if the candidates and the public are
11  on board.  I think right now this is, kind of, the
12  world that we live in.  Most people are now very
13  comfortable with these virtual meetings and Zoom.
14      So, we do have plans to address any issues
15  that being a voter will have if, perhaps, they don't
16  have broadband access or connectivity.  So, we do have
17  some backup plans on how we can get them information on
18  those debates.  We do have plans for our legislative
19  districts that -- maybe the Navajo Nation.  We intend
20  on streaming the recording post of the event on KTNN to
21  ensure that those communities enjoy the debate, as
22  well.  And we did partner with the Arizona Capitol
23  Times this year again to moderate several of these
24  debates.
25      And as far as the actual format of the

10:18:40-10:19:42 Page 37

 1  debate goes, we do have a very -- more relaxed format
 2  this year, and the reason behind that is to -- again,
 3  with this new platform, we just wanted to encourage and
 4  allow more interaction and dialogue between the
 5  candidates.
 6      So, we are excited and hopeful that that
 7  will produce a more substantive discussion, but
 8  overall, that's, kind of, a really high-level overview
 9  of where we are with the debate change.  Again, this is
10  done to ensure that we could practice those CDC
11  guidelines and social distancing and, again, we are so
12  far very excited about this new platform.
13  Historically, the Commission has always looked at new
14  ways to engage with the public and voters, and we feel
15  this falls right in line with that.
16      If there's any questions about the debate
17  process, I'm happy to answer those before I jump into
18  the next item.
19      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Anyone have any
20  questions for Gina?
21      (No response.)
22      COMMISSIONER CHAN: All right.  Thank you.
23      Gina, go right on ahead.
24      MS. ROBERTS: Great.  Thank you,
25  Commissioner Chan and Commissioners --

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(9) Pages 34 - 37



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Transcript of Proceedings / Public Meeting
April 30, 2020

10:19:45-10:20:52 Page 38

 1      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Sorry.  This is
 2  Commissioner Meyer.
 3      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Sorry, Commissioner
 4  Meyer.  Go ahead.
 5      COMMISSIONER MEYER: No, no.  My apologies.
 6  I was on mute.
 7      I had a question probably for -- for both
 8  Tom and Gina; and that is, you know, if this
 9  continues -- this pandemic continues, you know, longer
10  than any of us want to and runs into the elections, are
11  there plans in place?  Is anyone planning on how to
12  actually do the polling on day of and -- I'm sorry --
13  voting at the polls on the day of the locations?
14      MR. COLLINS: So -- Gina, do you want to go
15  first?
16      MS. ROBERTS: Sure.  So, Chairwoman Chan
17  and Commissioner Meyer, I apologize.  I want to make
18  sure that I fully understand your question.  So, were
19  you -- were you inquiring about how to inform people
20  about how to vote on the day of the election?  And I
21  apologize.  I just want to make sure I fully understood
22  your question.
23      Do you mind elaborating a little more?
24      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Not at all.  It was
25  not my most eloquent moment by any stretch.

10:20:57-10:22:14 Page 39

 1      My question is, if this pandemic lasts
 2  longer than we want to and we still have the social
 3  distancing or, you know, worse.  I mean, we all saw the
 4  footage in Wisconsin where people were going to the
 5  polls and, you know, lined up for blocks because of the
 6  social distancing requirement.  I think some folks
 7  actually may have contracted the virus when they were
 8  voting.
 9      Are there any plans or is there any thought
10  of an alternative system or how people are going to
11  vote at locations if we don't get to a better place
12  with this virus?
13      MS. ROBERTS: Okay.  Commissioner, thank
14  you.  That helps clarify.  And I think that really
15  leads into our next section about the ballot by mail
16  and voter education campaign and the pollworker
17  recruitment.
18      With what was discussed a little bit
19  earlier in terms of legislation authorizing an all-mail
20  election, the background behind that is that,
21  Commissioners, so to vote -- voters have always had
22  several options in how they can cast their ballot.
23  They can either vote in person early or on election day
24  or they can get a ballot mailed to them, and that's --
25  voting by mail has been around for well over a decade.

10:22:18-10:23:23 Page 40

 1      To do that, the voter would have to make a
 2  request, and that either -- that request is either done
 3  by joining the permanent early voting list.  So, it's a
 4  one-time request and, then, going forward, any election
 5  that they're eligible to vote in, the ballot is
 6  automatically mailed to them, or voters can do a
 7  one-time request per election.  So, maybe they don't
 8  want to join the permanent early voting list but they
 9  decide this particular election they want to vote by
10  mail, they can make that simple one-time request.
11      So, what we've seen from our election
12  officials from several counties and from the Secretary
13  of State's office here in Arizona, there has been a
14  call for the legislature to authorize all mail, and
15  what that would mean is that every eligible voter would
16  automatically be mailed a ballot, not just if you're on
17  the permanent early voting list or if you made that
18  one-time request.
19      And so, the thought process behind that was
20  if we can get those ballots out to all of those voters,
21  that will reduce the number of people voting in person.
22  In-person locations with an all-mail election would
23  still be required because voters would still need the
24  opportunity to get a replacement ballot.  Maybe, you
25  know, they lost their ballot that was mailed to them or

10:23:26-10:24:43 Page 41

 1  they spoiled it.
 2      So, that would have been the discussion
 3  that's been happening about what that alternate plan
 4  would look like, but I think, as Tom alluded to, it
 5  doesn't seem like that's a possibility right now with
 6  the legislature.  So, in terms of the voter education
 7  context, what staff has been working on is a Voter
 8  Education Plan to inform voters about those options for
 9  requesting your ballot by -- ballot by mail.
10      Right now, in Arizona, about 80 percent of
11  voters already vote by mail.  So, we need to reach that
12  other 20 percent and inform them about their options in
13  so much as if you decide this year that, you know, it's
14  in the best interest for you and your family to vote at
15  home, here's the steps that you need to take on how to
16  do it.
17      And so, we've been working -- staff has
18  been working on this plan to launch a Voter Education
19  Plan, and we did -- we were contacted by the Secretary
20  of State's office.  They would like to partner with us
21  on that, as well, and the counties, as well.  So, right
22  now the stance in terms of voter education context is
23  informing the public about how to make that request for
24  that ballot.
25      Does that address your question,

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(10) Pages 38 - 41



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Transcript of Proceedings / Public Meeting
April 30, 2020

10:24:45-10:25:56 Page 42

 1  Commissioner Meyer --
 2      COMMISSIONER MEYER: I mean --
 3      MS. ROBERTS: I guess --
 4      COMMISSIONER MEYER: No, thank you for
 5  that.  I mean, I guess -- I guess what I'm hearing is
 6  we're going to try to emphasize the options that are
 7  currently available on a voting by mail but no real
 8  legislative changes are expected on how polling or
 9  voting will happen or the locations at this election.
10      Is that fair to say?
11      MS. ROBERTS: Commissioners, Commissioner
12  Meyer, I believe that is fair to say.
13      Tom, I don't know if you'd like to chime in
14  more on the legislative aspect of it, but I believe
15  that's correct.
16      MR. COLLINS: I think that's -- I think
17  that -- I mean -- yeah, I think that as long as the
18  legislature is in session, I think that you will hear
19  folks try to talk about the possibility of changing
20  their minds, but the legislature is divided, really,
21  into three camps, and two of the three camps are not
22  amenable to changes that would be in making more
23  available -- with having a non-request early ballot.
24      So, there's a camp that wants to have
25  non-request early ballots sent to voters.  It's not

10:26:00-10:27:20 Page 43

 1  clear what universe of voters they mean but -- you
 2  know, because there are eligible voters.  There are
 3  eligible voters who are on the rolls.  There are active
 4  voters and there are inactive voters, but that's --
 5  anyways.  There's the expansion folks, but there are
 6  two sets of folks who are opposed to that, folks who
 7  would like the status quo and folks who would like to
 8  roll back the status quo.
 9      So, that's just the reality.  I think that
10  you will see efforts -- well, "The Republic" had a
11  column by EJ Montini maybe a couple of weeks ago where
12  the Maricopa County Recorder talked about sending out
13  requests for early ballots to voters.  My understanding
14  of the legal basis for that is there's no law against
15  it.  I don't know if that will come to pass or not, but
16  that would be something that would really be in their
17  ballpark, not ours, because we don't have that kind of
18  access to the voter -- direct voter files on a regular
19  basis.
20      So, those are the -- that's the, sort of,
21  state of policy right now.
22      MS. ROBERTS: And, Commissioners -- this is
23  Gina -- if I may just tag on to that, we do have our
24  Voter Education Guide, which will be going out to every
25  household with a registered voter before the start of

10:27:23-10:28:32 Page 44

 1  early voting begins.  And so we will, in that guide,
 2  call attention to those options of getting your ballot
 3  by mail and what you need to do, as well, too.  So, in
 4  addition to our paid media campaign that we will
 5  employ, we do have that direct mailer that is going to
 6  every household.  And so, that's another opportunity
 7  for us to connect with voters and explain the options
 8  that are available to them.
 9      And, also, if I -- if I may, the other
10  component of this, too, is even, you know, if it's all
11  mail or status quo, we do, also, have the added
12  component of independent voters.  So, independent
13  voters that wish to vote by mail, whether or not
14  they're already on PEVL or if they're making a one-time
15  request, independent voters must take an extra step of
16  contacting their county recorders to tell them which
17  party ballot to mail them in the primary.  So, we will
18  be sure that we have that educational piece in our
19  outreach, as well, too.
20      COMMISSIONER CHAN: I think that --
21      COMMISSIONER MEYER: This is Commissioner
22  Meyer.  Thank you, Gina and Tom.
23      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Sorry, Commissioner
24  Meyer, to speak over you.
25      COMMISSIONER MEYER: No, no.  I was just

10:28:34-10:29:53 Page 45

 1  saying thank you to Tom and Gina for that information.
 2      MS. ROBERTS: And, Commissioner Chan, if I
 3  may, I can jump into the next piece of that, which
 4  would be the pollworker recruitment campaign, if
 5  there's no further questions about --
 6      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Yes, please do.  Yeah,
 7  that's going to be troublesome this year with the
 8  coronavirus going around.
 9      MS. ROBERTS: Well, Commissioners, and
10  Commissioner Chan, I think, as you mentioned earlier,
11  too, we have seen other states have issues with
12  pollworkers willing to serve.  As we know, the
13  demographics for pollworkers are typically going to
14  fall into that high-risk category.  We are on the --
15  most are typically on the elderly side that choose to
16  serve.
17      And so, our plan this year is -- in
18  partnership with the Secretary of State's Office and
19  the counties is to launch a voter education campaign
20  letting voters know about what it means to serve as a
21  pollworker and it is that they are healthy and willing
22  to step up and serve, and we would explain what it
23  means, what those responsibilities are, that it is a
24  paid position and it's an opportunity to facilitate
25  democracy.  We have seen other states do similar

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(11) Pages 42 - 45



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Transcript of Proceedings / Public Meeting
April 30, 2020

10:29:57-10:31:04 Page 46

 1  outreach programs.  I believe the Iowa Secretary of
 2  State just launched a similar campaign.
 3      Again, as I mentioned, in other states we
 4  are seeing pollworkers who refuse to work just because
 5  of their -- you know, of the potential risk to them.
 6  And so, pollworker recruitment is always a top concern
 7  regardless of the election year or surrounding
 8  circumstances, but again, in light of COVID-19, we do
 9  want to make sure that whatever the voting process may
10  be, that the counties have the staff that they need to
11  execute the election on election day and that they have
12  sufficient pollworkers.  And so, that will be another
13  voter education campaign that we will be employing for
14  that outreach.
15      And with that, I'm happy to answer any
16  questions.
17      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Thank you, Gina.
18      Commissioners, do you have any questions
19  for Gina?
20      (No response.)
21      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Okay.  I was waiting to
22  see if anyone needed to take themselves off mute.
23      Thank you for that, Gina.
24      Tom?
25      MR. COLLINS: Commissioner Chan, I just

10:31:06-10:32:17 Page 47

 1  want to say I wanted to thank Gina and Alec and Avery
 2  and Paula for their work on this.  Paula has helped
 3  us -- helped significantly with the debate format
 4  change.  We had a change of vendors, and we've had a
 5  number of different administrative aspects that were
 6  going on both currently and, then, additionally this.
 7  So, I think that Gina and Paula's work and leadership
 8  on this has been really outstanding, and I -- and I --
 9  we could not -- we would not be in this position
10  without them.  So, I think we're really lucky.
11      MS. THOMAS: Thank you, Tom.
12      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Thank you, Tom.  We
13  really appreciate that, and I really hope you all know
14  how much I appreciate you.  And I'm sure all the
15  commissioners feel the same way.  I just -- I feel like
16  it's a love session every time we get together, but
17  it's really sincere.  So, I hope you all feel that.
18      Okay.  Moving on to Item Number V,
19  discussion and possible action on the budget outlook
20  report.
21      And, Tom, is it you or Mike today?
22      MR. COLLINS: Commissioner Chan, I'm going
23  to -- I'm going to take this, and then --
24      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Okay.
25      MR. COLLINS: -- and, then, I think that --

10:32:20-10:33:42 Page 48

 1  and Mike is free to jump in if he -- if he wants to,
 2  especially if I say anything completely wrong or --
 3      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Okay.
 4      MR. COLLINS: -- or even mostly wrong.
 5      The -- so, we just wanted to make the
 6  Commission aware of the fact that, you know, the COVID
 7  situation and the resulting collapse in the demand and
 8  other -- other economic remunerations are going to have
 9  an effect on State revenues.  We sent along some of the
10  latest information from the Joint Legislative Budget
11  Committee.
12      What it -- what it -- you know, the
13  short-term outlook for the State budget is that this
14  fiscal year, which is already almost over, really -- I
15  mean, we're coming up on May 1st.  There's only two
16  months left in the fiscal year.  The governor and the
17  legislature, I think they've both determined that they
18  will not deal with any deficit issues in this fiscal
19  year.  There's no time to cut budgets left, but they
20  will roll those over into the next fiscal year where,
21  at least as of April 9th, JLBC estimates are that
22  there's a wide range of possible deficit issues.
23      The first thing that that will tap is the
24  State Rainy Fund, which is about a billion dollars.
25  There is some federal assistance that JLBC anticipates

10:33:46-10:35:26 Page 49

 1  lasting until fiscal '22 when there may be a further --
 2  you know, a further shortfall as that money runs out
 3  and, then, obviously, how -- what the -- what the
 4  recovery and when the recovery begins and what it looks
 5  like.
 6      Part of the reason we wanted to make you
 7  all aware of some of these issues is just, you know, we
 8  are -- as a matter of law and of the application of the
 9  Voter Protection Act to the Clean Elections Act, we
10  were appropriated by the voters.  And so, as such, the
11  Clean Elections Fund is a fund that is appropriated to
12  the purposes outlined in the Clean Elections Act.  What
13  that means is that the fund is not something that,
14  quote, rolls over.  And we saw this in this session,
15  legislators start to use the term "rollover" to
16  describe the fund balance.  That was before the budget
17  started -- problem started.
18      That is an incorrect statement, and we'll
19  be working with folks to ensure that they understand
20  that that is not a correct statement of what the Clean
21  Elections Fund does.  The fund is -- the process for
22  the Commission in making a determination that there
23  are -- that there are, quote, excess funds in the Clean
24  Elections Fund is set forth in the Act, something we do
25  a projection on every year.  And, currently, under the

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(12) Pages 46 - 49



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Transcript of Proceedings / Public Meeting
April 30, 2020

10:35:29-10:37:09 Page 50

 1  formula set forth in the Act, we are significantly
 2  under the cap, if we want to call it that, at which the
 3  Commission would consider that kind of excess revenue.
 4      So, the reality is that in the boom times
 5  prior to the 2008 recession, the Commission made
 6  significant contributions to the general fund.  At the
 7  end of that -- toward the end of that recession in
 8  2012, the legislature removed two of the major funding
 9  sources for the Clean Elections Fund.  And so, the
10  reality is that when you combine the monies that the
11  prior Commission did hand to the legislature during the
12  early part of the 2000s and you combine -- and the fact
13  that the tax credits -- voluntary tax credits were
14  removed, the legislature -- the general fund is already
15  getting significant revenues from Clean Elections that,
16  otherwise, it would be getting.  And that's another
17  part of the -- part of the story that we'll be happy to
18  explain to folks.
19      Nevertheless, you know, we'll be keeping an
20  eye on this because we can't -- we aren't immune
21  from -- we aren't immune from pressures that will come
22  because of these -- the revenue shortfalls that are
23  already baked in and we're, also, not immune from our
24  own potential revenue.  That's something that Julian
25  and Mike have begun to look at.  We don't have enough

10:37:13-10:38:44 Page 51

 1  information yet to really form any -- inform -- to
 2  really form much in the way of speculation on that,
 3  but -- beyond speculation about that, but it is
 4  something that we are keeping an eye on.
 5      So, for this election season, you know,
 6  most of our costs are pretty much set.  We have ample
 7  money in the fund to pay for the voter education
 8  outreach efforts that we are required to make and the
 9  others that we are making, and we have the ample
10  funding for the candidates who are -- who have chosen
11  to run clean.  That's not an issue.
12      We've managed the fund, I think, in a way
13  that's pretty reasonable over the course of the last --
14  I don't know -- seven or eight years, given the --
15  given the loss of those two revenue sources.  And --
16  and so, I think that we're in a -- I think that we're
17  in a good position, but again, you know, you take
18  the -- the legislature that exists now -- and I don't
19  know what the 2020 legislature will look like, but the
20  current legislature -- the legislature that, you know,
21  began in 2021 will look like.
22      The current legislature is different than
23  the legislature that worked with Governor Brewer in the
24  last economic crisis.  This legislature is -- has --
25  just has a different attitude about certain things, I

10:38:47-10:39:50 Page 52

 1  think.  So that will change the dynamic and always
 2  will.  We don't know how that will play out, but we --
 3  you know, but -- long story short, you know, we'll be
 4  acting in a way that, I think, is budget-conscious, but
 5  our short-term -- our short-term outlook is good.  And
 6  that's where we are.
 7      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Thank you, Tom.
 8      Commissioners, do you -- do any of you have
 9  any comments or questions for Tom or Mike?
10      (No response.)
11      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Okay.  I think Item VI,
12  we already discussed the update on cases in the
13  Executive Director's report.
14      MR. COLLINS: Yeah.
15      COMMISSIONER CHAN: And so, I'm going to --
16  if there's no other questions on what Tom just talked
17  about in the budget outlook, I will move on to public
18  comment.
19      Do we have any public comment today?
20      MR. COLLINS: We haven't received any
21  calls.  I don't believe we have any -- any comment.
22      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Okay.  Thank you.
23      MR. COLLINS: Yeah.
24      COMMISSIONER CHAN: I wasn't sure.
25      MR. COLLINS: Commissioner Chan, if you

10:39:51-10:40:49 Page 53

 1  could note that people can --
 2      COMMISSIONER CHAN: I will note for the
 3  record that --
 4      MR. COLLINS: Yeah.
 5      COMMISSIONER CHAN: -- there's no one
 6  present for public comment today.
 7      MR. COLLINS: Right.
 8      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Is that what you wanted
 9  me to do?
10      MR. COLLINS: Well, we also want to
11  encourage folks who are watching, if you have a public
12  comment that you have been unable to get to the
13  Commission, please, that you can call the Commission at
14  (602) 364-3477 or you can email the Commission at
15  ccec@azcleanelections.gov.  That's, again,
16  ccec@azcleanelections.gov, or you can reach us through
17  that address through our website.  And those are ways
18  to -- to get the public comment to the Commission.
19      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Thank you, Tom.  I
20  could not -- I could not have said that, at all, myself
21  probably right off the top of my head.  So, thank you.
22      And so, for anybody listening, yes, if you
23  have public comment, you can submit it one of those
24  ways.
25      And with that, it looks like we're up to

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(13) Pages 50 - 53



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Transcript of Proceedings / Public Meeting
April 30, 2020

10:40:54-10:41:43 Page 54

 1  Item VIII, which is adjournment.
 2      May I call on Commissioner Paton, perhaps,
 3  to make a motion?
 4      CHAIRMAN PATON: Sure.  This is
 5  Commissioner Paton, and I would make a motion to
 6  adjourn our meeting.
 7      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Okay.  And is there a
 8  second out there?
 9      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Commissioner Meyer.
10  Second.
11      COMMISSIONER CHAN: All right.  We have a
12  motion and a second to adjourn.  Let's go ahead and do
13  a roll call.
14      Commissioner Paton, how do you vote?
15      CHAIRMAN PATON: Aye.
16      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Commissioner Titla?
17      COMMISSIONER TITLA: Aye.
18      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Commission Meyer?
19      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Aye.
20      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Commissioner Kimble?
21      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: Aye.
22      COMMISSIONER CHAN: And I'm Commissioner
23  Chan, and I vote aye.
24      And with that, we'll adjourn this meeting.
25  Thank you all very much and, Tom, I hope this went

10:41:46-10:41:50 Page 55

 1  okay.
 2      MR. COLLINS: I think it went fine.  It
 3  worked for us.
 4      COMMISSIONER CHAN: All right.  Great.
 5  Thank you so much, everyone.
 6      (Whereupon, the proceedings concluded at
 7      10:41 a.m.)
 8  ///
 9  ///
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  

Page 56

 1  STATE OF ARIZONA     )
   
 2  COUNTY OF MARICOPA   )
   
 3              BE IT KNOWN the foregoing proceedings were
   
 4  taken by me; that I was then and there a Certified
   
 5  Reporter of the State of Arizona, and by virtue thereof
   
 6  authorized to administer an oath; that the proceedings
   
 7  were taken down by me in shorthand and thereafter
   
 8  transcribed into typewriting under my direction; that
   
 9  the foregoing pages are a full, true, and accurate
   
10  transcript of all proceedings and testimony had and
   
11  adduced upon the taking of said proceedings, all done to
   
12  the best of my skill and ability.
   
13              I FURTHER CERTIFY that I am in no way
   
14  related to nor employed by any of the parties thereto
   
15  nor am I in any way interested in the outcome hereof.
   
16              DATED at Phoenix, Arizona, this 2nd day of
   
17  May, 2020.
   
18 
   
19                       ______________________________
                         LILIA MONARREZ, RPR, CR #50699
20 
   
21 
   
22 
   
23 
   
24 
   
25 

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(14) Pages 54 - 56



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Transcript of Proceedings / Public Meeting
April 30, 2020

/

/// (2) 55:8,9

A

able (7) 8:25;10:2,3;
    11:14;35:8,15,21
ABOR (1) 13:22
abreast (2) 8:10;9:3
Absolutely (2) 7:2;
    16:15
access (3) 35:17;
    36:16;43:18
Act (5) 49:9,9,12,24;
    50:1
acting (1) 52:4
action (4) 5:18;7:19;
    34:6;47:19
actions (1) 34:5
active (1) 43:3
actual (3) 22:14;27:10;
    36:25
actually (10) 5:7;13:6;
    17:21;18:17;20:4;
    24:11;31:9;35:24;
    38:12;39:7
adapted (1) 34:16
add (1) 21:13
added (1) 44:11
addition (2) 24:25;44:4
additionally (1) 47:6
address (3) 36:14;
    41:25;53:17
ADHS (1) 12:22
adjourn (4) 26:7;54:6,
    12,24
adjourning (1) 27:2
adjournment (1) 54:1
adjusted (1) 9:20
adjustment (1) 9:22
administrative (1) 47:5
administratively (1) 9:9
administrators (1) 15:9
admire (1) 9:25
ado (1) 31:23
Advocacy (1) 13:20
affect (2) 13:12;15:9
afterwards (2) 21:14,15
again (12) 22:13;30:1;
    35:6;36:10,23;37:2,9,
    11;46:3,8;51:17;53:15
against (3) 22:14;
    30:24;43:14
aged (1) 33:18
agency (1) 8:21
agenda (7) 5:10;13:8;
    28:16;29:1;31:6,11;
    34:15
ago (4) 19:17;24:7;
    33:3;43:11
AG's (1) 13:14

ahead (9) 3:4;6:21;7:3;
    29:16;32:5;35:23;
    37:23;38:4;54:12
Alec (1) 47:1
alive (2) 24:24;26:11
all-mail (2) 39:19;40:22
allow (2) 15:3;37:4
allowed (1) 14:24
alluded (1) 41:4
almost (2) 23:18;48:14
along (1) 48:9
alternate (1) 41:3
alternative (1) 39:10
always (5) 18:10;
    37:13;39:21;46:6;52:1
amenable (1) 42:22
amended (1) 15:2
Amendment (4) 24:5,
    15,17,18
Amendments (1) 23:24
ample (2) 51:6,9
answered (2) 17:20;
    36:3
anticipate (4) 13:7;
    21:23;22:20;32:21
anticipates (1) 48:25
anymore (1) 35:8
anyways (2) 29:22;43:5
apologies (3) 17:23;
    20:19;38:5
apologize (3) 5:1;
    38:17,21
appeal (1) 24:7
appealing (1) 24:24
appellate (1) 22:16
application (1) 49:8
appointing (1) 32:7
appreciate (5) 25:23;
    32:16,19;47:13,14
apprised (1) 23:8
approaching (1) 18:10
appropriated (2) 49:10,
    11
approve (2) 6:13,19
approximately (2) 20:3;
    23:15
April (2) 3:25;48:21
arbiter (1) 19:3
areas (1) 12:5
argued (1) 25:5
argument (2) 13:20;
    23:25
arguments (1) 13:23
Arizona (12) 8:11;
    13:20;14:3,14,23;19:1,
    19;20:1;23:23;36:22;
    40:13;41:10
around (6) 24:3;26:4;
    29:2;33:21;39:25;45:8
arrive (2) 21:5;23:14
aspect (1) 42:14
aspects (1) 47:5
assistance (1) 48:25

associated (1) 11:23
attendance (1) 4:2
attention (1) 44:2
attitude (1) 51:25
Attorney (1) 13:25
August (7) 22:24;23:3;
    27:20,20,21,22,24
authorize (1) 40:14
authorizing (1) 39:19
automatically (2) 40:6,
    16
available (7) 34:9;35:3,
    6;36:1;42:7,23;44:8
Avery (2) 8:8;47:1
aware (5) 20:17;25:15;
    30:12;48:6;49:7
Aye (10) 7:6,9,11,13,
    15;54:15,17,19,21,23

B

back (6) 26:4,6,21;
    30:15,16;43:8
background (6) 12:11;
    18:16;19:14;20:6;
    34:21;39:20
backup (1) 36:17
baked (1) 50:23
balance (1) 49:16
balanced (1) 9:21
ballot (21) 16:16,16,17;
    19:20;20:25;21:5;
    29:10;34:7;39:15,22,
    24;40:5,16,24,25;41:9,
    9,24;42:23;44:2,17
ballots (9) 14:4;20:1,
    22;22:11,15;23:13;
    40:20;42:25;43:13
ballpark (1) 43:17
ban (1) 19:21
banc (2) 14:25;15:10
basically (2) 12:9;14:14
basis (2) 43:14,19
Becker (2) 28:11;29:8
become (2) 25:3;27:25
began (1) 51:21
begin (1) 20:15
Beginning (1) 11:10
begins (2) 44:1;49:4
begun (1) 50:25
behalf (1) 10:9
behind (3) 37:2;39:20;
    40:19
best (1) 41:14
better (1) 39:11
beyond (1) 51:3
big (2) 14:9;18:1
biggest (2) 12:13,13
billion (1) 48:24
bills (1) 26:10
bit (3) 19:14;20:18;
    39:18
blanc (1) 17:7

blocks (1) 39:5
blurted (1) 30:12
board (1) 36:11
body (1) 18:11
boom (1) 50:4
both (4) 5:22;38:7;
    47:6;48:17
Brewer (1) 51:23
briefing (2) 12:20;21:24
bring (4) 28:15,20;
    29:25;30:23
Brnovich (1) 25:20
broadband (1) 36:16
budget (5) 47:19;48:10,
    13;49:16;52:17
budget-conscious (1)
    52:4
budgets (1) 48:19
business (3) 8:24;
    12:10;21:15

C

cabal (1) 33:24
cagy (1) 20:12
call (15) 3:5,18,19,24,
    25;6:22;7:4;35:22,25;
    40:14;44:2;50:2;53:13;
    54:2,13
called (4) 4:24;19:16;
    20:8;23:22
calls (1) 52:21
came (1) 16:8
camp (1) 42:24
campaign (8) 17:4;
    34:8;39:16;44:4;45:4,
    19;46:2,13
camps (2) 42:21,21
can (35) 3:7;5:20;7:21;
    8:8;9:12,14,14;11:3,
    10;12:22;15:24;16:3,
    12,12,12;28:15,15;
    29:3;31:7;35:5,24;
    36:2,17;39:22,23,24;
    40:6,10,20;45:3;53:1,
    13,14,16,23
candidate (1) 13:14
candidates (10) 31:16;
    34:24;35:10,13,22;
    36:5,8,10;37:5;51:10
cap (2) 12:8;50:2
Capitol (1) 36:22
car (1) 3:12
care (2) 5:15,20
carried (1) 12:21
case (25) 7:3;13:21,22;
    15:14;17:5,14;18:11,
    21,22;19:16;20:5,7,7,
    10,13,15;21:7,8,25;
    22:13;23:7,21,21;25:2,
    5
cases (4) 18:8;20:16;
    25:19;52:12

cast (2) 20:1;39:22
casting (1) 22:14
categories (1) 13:10
category (1) 45:14
cause (1) 12:9
ccec@azcleanelectionsgov (2)

    53:15,16
CDC (1) 37:10
centers (2) 15:4,5
cents (1) 19:11
certain (4) 11:14;15:4;
    17:16;51:25
certainly (2) 18:10;
    32:15
cetera (2) 28:13;30:16
Chairman (21) 3:3,6,9,
    12,15;4:7;7:6;15:15,
    17,20;16:2,20,22;
    17:22,24;32:2,6;33:4,
    24;54:4,15
Chairwoman (1) 38:16
challenge (2) 13:15;
    24:20
Chan (99) 3:17,20,23;
    4:8,12,15,18,19,24;5:2,
    7,12,15,23;6:4,7,14,17;
    7:2,7,10,12,14,15,23,
    24;9:12,15;11:8;14:16,
    17,21;17:2;18:6,16,18,
    19;19:12;20:4;21:12;
    26:14,16,17,19,23;
    27:4,6,23;28:12,23;
    29:13,15,23;31:5,12,
    24;32:4,9;33:5,6,25;
    34:3,10,13;37:19,22,
    25;38:3,16;44:20,23;
    45:2,6,10;46:17,21,25;
    47:12,22,24;48:3;52:7,
    11,15,22,24,25;53:2,5,
    8,19;54:7,11,16,18,20,
    22,23;55:4
chance (3) 16:4;20:18;
    22:8
change (10) 15:22;
    19:22;27:7;30:9;34:7;
    36:8;37:9;47:4,4;52:1
changed (1) 10:11
changes (8) 9:4;15:23,
    24,25;17:17;34:20;
    42:8,22
changing (1) 42:19
checked (1) 32:11
chime (3) 9:14;10:10;
    42:13
choose (1) 45:15
chosen (1) 51:10
Circuit (6) 14:2,25;
    15:10;16:6;19:18;25:8
Circuit's (1) 17:7
circulating (1) 24:3
circumstances (1) 46:8
cities (1) 8:6
Citizens (1) 4:1

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(1) /// - Citizens



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Transcript of Proceedings / Public Meeting
April 30, 2020

civil (1) 20:10
claim (2) 24:15,17
claims (2) 24:11,23
clarification (1) 11:2
clarify (4) 11:3;16:4;
    31:5;39:14
Clean (11) 4:1;11:2;
    35:17;49:9,11,12,20,
    23;50:9,15;51:11
clear (5) 16:13;23:1;
    24:20;26:3;43:1
close (1) 20:25
cognizant (1) 35:19
collapse (1) 48:7
collect (1) 36:1
collection (5) 14:4;
    16:16,17,17;19:20
COLLINS (67) 3:3,8,11,
    13,16,21;4:20,23;5:1,6,
    11,14,21;6:4,24;7:22,
    24;11:8;13:3;14:7,11,
    19;15:11,16,19;16:1;
    17:1;18:6,14;20:14;
    21:11,21;22:3,6;23:4,
    16,20;24:12,18;25:7,9;
    26:15,18,22;27:5,22;
    28:22;29:9,14,17;31:4,
    14;32:9;38:14;42:16;
    46:25;47:22,25;48:4;
    52:14,20,23,25;53:4,7,
    10;55:2
column (1) 43:11
combine (2) 50:10,12
combined (1) 13:10
comfortable (1) 36:13
coming (6) 8:4;10:7,18;
    26:21;27:13;48:15
commend (1) 10:15
comment (8) 9:13;
    52:18,19,21;53:6,12,
    18,23
comments (2) 32:1;
    52:9
Commission (20) 4:1;
    5:18;6:19;10:2;23:8;
    28:16;31:19;33:10;
    34:16;37:13;48:6;
    49:22;50:3,5,11;53:13,
    13,14,18;54:18
Commissioner (166)
    3:14,17,20,23;4:3,5,8,
    8,10,12,13,14,15,16,17,
    18,19,20,24;5:2,7,12,
    15,23,25;6:1,4,6,7,8,10,
    12,14,15,15,17;7:2,4,7,
    7,9,10,10,11,12,12,13,
    14,14,23,24;9:12,15;
    10:13;11:8,9;13:2;
    14:16,17,21;15:18;
    16:1,23;17:2,3,25;18:6,
    7,15,18,19;19:12;20:4;
    21:12;26:14,16,16,19,
    23;27:4,6,23;28:12,22;

    29:13,15,23;31:5,12,
    24;32:3,4,4,9,10,21;
    33:5,5,6,12,14,15,20,
    25;34:3,10,13;37:19,
    22,25;38:1,2,3,3,5,17,
    24;39:13;42:1,2,4,11;
    44:20,21,21,23,23,25;
    45:2,6,10;46:17,21,25;
    47:12,22,24;48:3;52:7,
    11,15,22,24,25;53:2,5,
    8,19;54:2,5,7,9,9,11,14,
    16,16,17,18,19,20,20,
    21,22,22;55:4
commissioners (20)
    3:21;7:25;9:13;10:10;
    19:13;20:19;21:13,21;
    31:2;32:7,18;34:11;
    37:25;39:21;42:11;
    43:22;45:9;46:18;
    47:15;52:8
Commission's (1) 8:7
committee (2) 13:16;
    48:11
communities (1) 36:21
completely (1) 48:2
component (2) 44:10,
    12
comprehensive (1)
    11:10
concern (1) 46:6
concerned (4) 17:10;
    27:9,19;28:5
concerns (1) 36:8
concluded (1) 55:6
concludes (1) 31:23
conclusion (1) 33:9
conduct (1) 35:13
conducted (2) 18:23;
    27:17
conference (1) 11:21
confused (2) 10:22;
    11:1
congressional (1) 13:16
connect (1) 44:7
Connecticut (1) 12:17
connectivity (1) 36:16
consider (2) 28:19;50:3
considering (1) 11:17
consistent (1) 8:22
Constitution (1) 23:23
constitutional (2) 24:2,
    22
contacted (1) 41:19
contacting (1) 44:16
contemplative (1) 33:8
context (7) 28:25;
    29:18,21,24;34:21;
    41:7,22
contextual (1) 20:6
contingency (1) 29:1
continue (3) 10:2;
    32:18;33:22
continued (2) 8:18;

    10:16
continues (3) 26:12;
    38:9,9
continuing (1) 8:8
contracted (2) 27:12;
    39:7
contributions (1) 50:6
convoluted (1) 20:9
corner (1) 12:3
corners (1) 10:20
coronavirus (4) 27:12,
    14;30:18;45:8
costs (1) 51:6
counsel (1) 23:7
counties (10) 8:6;15:2,
    3,4,6,8;40:12;41:21;
    45:19;46:10
county (3) 13:16;43:12;
    44:16
couple (3) 12:5;20:16;
    43:11
course (3) 3:23;12:10;
    51:13
court (10) 6:3;13:18;
    14:1;16:25;17:7;19:2,
    2;20:2;21:2;25:21
courts (2) 17:13;19:7
Court's (1) 19:21
cover (2) 7:25;13:4
COVID (2) 32:22;48:6
COVID-19 (6) 9:5,19;
    17:18;34:17;35:7;46:8
credits (2) 50:13,13
crisis (1) 51:24
current (2) 51:20,22
currently (4) 15:6;42:7;
    47:6;49:25
cut (1) 48:19

D

danger (1) 30:9
date (4) 13:20;26:21,
    25;27:21
day (8) 21:1,4,18;
    38:12,13,20;39:23;
    46:11
days (6) 16:8;21:4,14,
    15,17,19
deadline (3) 20:21;
    21:2;25:10
deal (1) 48:18
deals (1) 29:1
debate (16) 34:6,21;
    35:6,11,14,18,21,23,
    24;36:1,9,21;37:1,9,16;
    47:3
debates (5) 34:20,23;
    35:3;36:18,24
decade (1) 39:25
decide (4) 18:22;19:4;
    40:9;41:13
decision (5) 13:24;

    15:1,3;16:8;19:21
declaration (1) 21:10
declared (2) 8:15,15
defer (1) 17:1
deficit (2) 48:18,22
definitely (4) 6:24;19:3,
    6;23:8
definition (1) 11:12
delivered (1) 20:25
demand (1) 48:7
democracy (1) 45:25
demographics (1)
    45:13
denial (2) 24:7,25
denied (1) 24:6
Department (1) 8:11
depending (1) 33:21
describe (1) 49:16
despite (1) 19:21
details (2) 8:19,19
determination (1) 49:22
determined (1) 48:17
DHS (1) 8:11
dialogue (1) 37:4
die (1) 26:6
died (1) 27:12
different (4) 19:15;47:5;
    51:22,25
difficult (1) 5:4
direct (2) 43:18;44:5
direction (1) 31:8
director (1) 10:16
Director's (3) 7:19;13:6;
    52:13
disappoint (1) 19:7
discuss (3) 28:18,25;
    29:3
discussed (2) 39:18;
    52:12
discussion (12) 5:17;
    7:19;26:4;27:1,1;
    29:19;31:9;34:4,5;
    37:7;41:2;47:19
discussions (1) 29:19
dismiss (4) 23:10;
    24:10,14,16
dismissal (1) 24:25
dismissed (2) 24:11,24
distancing (7) 9:24;
    10:6;11:15;35:9;37:11;
    39:3,6
distant (1) 28:9
district (2) 34:23;35:1
districts (1) 36:19
divided (1) 42:20
DNC (1) 25:20
dollars (1) 48:24
done (4) 12:1;18:12;
    37:10;40:2
down (7) 5:8;12:2;14:3,
    10;15:1;16:12;20:3
driver's (1) 30:14
Ducey (1) 8:14

due (4) 10:22;17:9;
    23:3;27:8
during (4) 8:24;28:13;
    35:24;50:11
dynamic (1) 52:1

E

earlier (2) 39:19;45:10
early (15) 22:1,10;
    23:13;27:25;28:5,7;
    39:23;40:3,8,17;42:23,
    25;43:13;44:1;50:12
easier (3) 6:24;29:18,
    21
echo (1) 33:11
economic (2) 48:8;
    51:24
educate (1) 30:2
education (16) 17:4;
    28:25;29:19,25;31:1;
    34:6,17;39:16;41:6,8,
    18,22;43:24;45:19;
    46:13;51:7
educational (1) 44:18
effect (2) 14:2;48:9
effectively (1) 21:18
effectually (1) 21:17
effort (1) 35:9
efforts (2) 43:10;51:8
eight (1) 51:14
either (8) 6:6;18:23;
    19:1;32:14;35:24;
    39:23;40:2,2
EJ (1) 43:11
elaborating (1) 38:23
elderly (1) 45:15
election (44) 8:4,12;
    10:17,17,24;14:14;
    15:23;16:7,9,25;18:1,4,
    9,23;19:20,23,23;21:1,
    4,5,17,18,19;22:25;
    23:6;27:17;28:5,8,13;
    29:11;32:22;38:20;
    39:20,23;40:4,7,9,11,
    22;42:9;46:7,11,11;
    51:5
Elections (13) 4:1;11:3;
    13:12;15:9;35:17;
    38:10;49:9,11,12,21,
    24;50:9,15
eligible (4) 40:5,15;
    43:2,3
eloquent (1) 38:25
else (1) 3:7
email (3) 35:21,25;
    53:14
emergency (1) 8:16
emphasize (1) 42:6
employ (1) 44:5
employing (1) 46:13
en (3) 14:25;15:10;
    17:6

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(2) civil - en



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Transcript of Proceedings / Public Meeting
April 30, 2020

encourage (3) 28:4;
    37:3;53:11
encouraging (2) 27:24;
    28:3
end (9) 13:21;21:25;
    22:2,3,3,7,8;50:7,7
engage (1) 37:14
enjoy (1) 36:21
enough (1) 50:25
enroll (1) 28:4
ensure (3) 36:21;
    37:10;49:19
entire (1) 10:19
equipped (1) 31:10
especially (4) 6:25;
    16:15;22:23;48:2
essential (1) 11:12
essentially (5) 11:11;
    20:24;21:2;22:11;
    23:25
establishments (1)
    11:14
estimates (1) 48:21
et (2) 28:13;30:16
even (9) 10:6;16:25;
    28:3,3,6;30:1,16;
    44:10;48:4
evening (2) 35:4;36:9
event (2) 22:23;36:20
events (1) 8:9
everybody (3) 5:8;8:13;
    28:6
everyone (5) 10:8;
    17:18;23:12;28:4;55:5
Excellent (2) 4:12,15
excess (2) 49:23;50:3
excited (2) 37:6,12
excuse (2) 19:15;22:5
execute (1) 46:11
Executive (4) 7:19;
    8:17;13:6;52:13
exists (1) 51:18
expanded (1) 8:23
expansion (2) 11:11;
    43:5
expected (1) 42:8
expedited (1) 22:16
expeditiously (1) 17:13
expires (1) 16:9
explain (5) 18:4;20:8;
    44:7;45:22;50:18
exposure (1) 35:9
expressly (1) 29:9
extra (1) 44:15
extreme (1) 33:11
extremely (1) 9:19
eye (2) 50:20;51:4
eyes (1) 22:22

F

fab (1) 33:23
face (2) 28:21,21

Facebook (1) 30:12
facilitate (1) 45:24
facilities (1) 35:1
fact (4) 9:23;19:25;
    48:6;50:12
failure (1) 23:14
fair (3) 17:10;42:10,12
fall (1) 45:14
falls (1) 37:15
family (2) 9:20;41:14
far (9) 8:12;12:14;
    26:12;28:18;30:23;
    36:7,9,25;37:12
faster (1) 12:10
feasible (1) 35:7
February (4) 5:19;6:14,
    19;30:11
federal (1) 48:25
feel (6) 5:10;33:6;
    37:14;47:15,15,17
feeling (1) 9:21
Feldman (1) 19:14
felony (1) 16:18
felt (1) 25:14
file (2) 14:5;21:8
filed (5) 13:25;21:8,9;
    23:9,10
files (1) 43:18
final (2) 18:5;19:3
finality (3) 17:6,15;18:2
finally (1) 23:20
finding (1) 30:18
fine (2) 5:22;55:2
first (13) 6:9;7:4;19:17;
    23:24;24:4,17,18;
    28:24;33:12;34:19;
    36:9;38:15;48:23
fiscal (5) 48:14,16,18,
    20;49:1
five (4) 21:4,14,14;
    33:23
floor (1) 29:12
fluctuating (1) 17:9
flux (2) 17:5,25
folks (13) 11:13;12:16;
    25:15,15;39:6;42:19;
    43:5,6,6,7;49:19;
    50:18;53:11
follow (1) 12:7
followed (2) 13:11,22
following (1) 11:19
footage (1) 39:4
force (1) 8:18
form (2) 51:1,2
format (4) 34:6;36:25;
    37:1;47:3
formula (1) 50:1
forth (2) 49:24;50:1
forthcoming (1) 11:19
fortunately (1) 23:7
forward (1) 40:4
four (2) 10:20;19:16
Fourteenth (3) 23:24;

    24:5,15
free (2) 5:10;48:1
Friday (1) 19:19
friend (1) 30:11
front (1) 31:2
fully (2) 38:18,21
Fund (13) 48:24;49:11,
    11,13,16,21,21,24;
    50:6,9,14;51:7,12
funded (1) 31:17
funding (2) 50:8;51:10
funds (1) 49:23
further (5) 21:4;31:23;
    45:5;49:1,2
future (1) 32:15

G

garbled (1) 6:2
general (8) 13:12,13;
    17:17;22:25;23:6;
    29:11;50:6,14
generally (1) 29:3
General's (1) 13:25
generosity (1) 32:20
Gina (14) 34:9,11;
    37:20,23;38:8,14;
    43:23;44:22;45:1;
    46:17,19,23;47:1,7
given (5) 17:17;19:25;
    31:7;51:14,15
goes (2) 33:22;37:1
good (9) 3:13;4:10;
    8:10;10:16;25:22;
    34:12,14;51:17;52:5
goods (2) 11:12,13
Governor (5) 8:14;11:5,
    16;48:16;51:23
Governor's (2) 31:19;
    32:14
Governors's (1) 32:11
grateful (2) 10:4;33:9
Great (3) 4:18;37:24;
    55:4
grown (1) 33:7
guess (12) 3:5,5;15:23;
    28:2,13;29:17,23;
    30:22;33:19;42:3,5,5
guidance (2) 8:12,22
Guide (2) 43:24;44:1
guidelines (2) 11:15;
    37:11
guys (1) 19:13

H

half (2) 33:3,8
hand (1) 50:11
handing (1) 30:15
hanging (1) 19:8
happen (1) 42:9
happened (2) 8:14;
    20:9

happening (2) 13:17;
    41:3
happens (1) 19:6
happy (9) 8:2,18;29:24;
    30:25;32:17;36:7;
    37:17;46:15;50:17
hard (2) 5:5;28:9
head (1) 53:21
heads-up (1) 36:5
Health (2) 8:11;12:25
healthy (1) 45:21
hear (2) 32:24;42:18
heard (5) 6:8;26:24,24,
    25,25
hearing (2) 21:24;42:5
held (1) 21:25
help (2) 11:3;25:23
helped (2) 47:2,3
helping (1) 5:3
helps (1) 39:14
here's (1) 41:15
Hi (3) 4:17;34:13,14
high-interest (1) 20:15
high-level (1) 37:8
highlight (1) 12:24
highlights (1) 12:18
high-risk (1) 45:14
historically (2) 34:22;
    37:13
Hobbs (2) 20:20;23:22
hold (2) 32:19;34:22
holding (3) 15:10;26:9;
    32:18
holdover (1) 33:13
home (3) 9:23;10:3;
    41:15
honest (1) 32:10
honestly (2) 5:3;32:13
hope (7) 10:5,8;17:20;
    18:10;47:13,17;54:25
hopeful (1) 37:6
hopefully (3) 17:15;
    30:4;33:20
hotels (1) 35:2
hours (2) 8:24;20:3
household (2) 43:25;
    44:6
hurried (1) 3:9

I

idea (1) 23:12
identified (1) 23:21
identify (1) 3:22
II (2) 5:17;7:17
III (1) 7:18
imagine (1) 32:23
immune (3) 50:20,21,
    23
impact (2) 14:13,13
impinging (1) 24:4
important (2) 9:7;19:25
impressed (1) 10:3

inactive (1) 43:4
Inaudible (2) 3:15;
    30:24
inclined (1) 29:12
included (1) 29:20
includes (1) 5:22
including (1) 34:6
incorrect (1) 49:18
independent (3) 44:12,
    12,15
indicated (1) 26:8
infected (1) 27:16
inform (4) 38:19;41:8,
    12;51:1
informally (1) 31:20
information (9) 8:7;
    16:3,11;25:24;27:13;
    36:17;45:1;48:10;51:1
informed (1) 26:13
informing (1) 41:23
initially (1) 9:22
initiative (2) 24:3,23
injunction (1) 23:11
In-person (1) 40:22
inquiring (1) 38:19
instead (1) 18:25
intend (1) 36:19
intents (1) 25:3
interact (4) 30:6,10,14;
    35:20
interaction (1) 37:4
interacts (1) 23:24
interest (2) 13:11;41:14
interesting (2) 15:13;
    20:10
interrupt (1) 14:8
into (7) 37:17;38:10;
    39:15;42:21;45:3,14;
    48:20
involved (2) 13:14;
    17:14
Iowa (1) 46:1
irresponsible (1) 30:20
issue (7) 11:17;17:3;
    18:20;20:21;21:22;
    31:9;51:11
issued (3) 8:15,16;
    19:18
issues (8) 9:1;23:3;
    24:3;36:14;45:11;
    48:18,22;49:7
Item (13) 5:16,17;7:17,
    18;13:4,7;29:1;34:1,4;
    37:18;47:18;52:11;
    54:1
IV (1) 34:4

J

Jersey (1) 12:17
JLBC (2) 48:21,25
job (1) 10:16
join (2) 10:15;40:8

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(3) encourage - join



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Transcript of Proceedings / Public Meeting
April 30, 2020

Joining (2) 29:7;40:3
Joint (1) 48:10
Julian (1) 50:24
July (2) 22:12;25:10
jump (3) 37:17;45:3;
    48:1
June (3) 13:21;21:25;
    22:8

K

Kara (9) 13:13;14:18,
    20;17:1;18:8;20:19;
    21:7;25:16,18
KARLSON (25) 4:22;
    6:2;7:1;14:6,8,12,20,
    20,23;16:21;17:2,23;
    18:13;19:12;21:9,12;
    22:2,5;23:1,5,18;24:10,
    17;25:5,8
keep (8) 9:8;10:4,7,18;
    12:1;23:8;25:1;26:12
keeping (5) 9:3;10:5;
    22:22;50:19;51:4
kept (3) 8:10,23;19:4
key (1) 9:3
kick (2) 3:5,17
Kimble (12) 4:16,17;
    5:25;6:15,15;7:12,13;
    33:15,17,18;54:20,21
kind (14) 3:9;9:20;
    10:25;19:8;27:15;28:9,
    19;30:17;35:4;36:4,11;
    37:8;43:17;50:3
knew (1) 22:6
known (2) 19:15,22
knows (3) 8:13;10:9;
    12:11
KTNN (1) 36:20

L

largely (1) 13:18
last (11) 8:14;10:11;
    13:23;14:15,23;23:21;
    26:24;27:1;32:25;
    51:13,24
lasting (1) 49:1
last-minute (1) 22:22
lasts (1) 39:1
later (2) 20:25;30:4
latest (1) 48:10
Latino (1) 20:20
launch (2) 41:18;45:19
launched (1) 46:2
law (10) 14:3,14,23;
    16:14;18:11,23;19:19,
    23;43:14;49:8
laws (1) 15:2
lawsuit (3) 14:9;21:20;
    22:14
lawyers (1) 20:8
lead (1) 23:7

leadership (2) 26:5;
    47:7
leading (2) 25:19,19
leads (1) 39:15
least (5) 19:20;21:23;
    23:13;31:20;48:21
leave (1) 19:8
Leaving (1) 28:10
led (1) 25:20
left (2) 48:16,19
legal (4) 13:5,9,10;
    43:14
legislation (1) 39:19
legislative (10) 7:20;
    13:15;26:11;30:1;
    34:23;35:1;36:18;42:8,
    14;48:10
legislators (1) 49:15
legislature (27) 24:1,
    21;25:25;26:2,2,3,6,20;
    28:18;29:3;30:8,21;
    40:14;41:6;42:18,20;
    48:17;50:8,11,14;
    51:18,19,20,20,22,23,
    24
letting (2) 36:5;45:20
level (2) 12:2;25:21
libraries (1) 35:2
license (1) 30:14
light (3) 34:17;35:6;
    46:8
limit (1) 30:6
line (3) 3:4;4:9;37:15
lined (1) 39:5
link (1) 12:23
list (5) 28:5,7;40:3,8,17
listening (1) 53:22
little (9) 5:4;9:21;19:13;
    20:18;26:1;27:15;33:7;
    38:23;39:18
live (2) 35:14;36:12
local (2) 8:4,5
locations (4) 38:13;
    39:11;40:22;42:9
long (4) 5:21;17:13;
    42:17;52:3
longer (6) 26:1;27:15;
    33:16;35:3;38:9;39:2
longest (1) 33:13
look (4) 41:4;50:25;
    51:19,21
looked (1) 37:13
looking (2) 11:1,17
looks (3) 35:11;49:4;
    53:25
loss (1) 51:15
lost (1) 40:25
lot (7) 8:1,1,1,2;18:17;
    23:16;29:1
love (1) 47:16
lucky (1) 47:10

M

magnitude (1) 16:24
mail (14) 27:8;29:10;
    34:7;39:15,25;40:10,
    14;41:9,11;42:7;44:3,
    11,13,17
mailed (5) 14:4;39:24;
    40:6,16,25
mailer (1) 44:5
main (4) 5:9;14:2;
    20:20;25:14
maintain (2) 12:15;30:5
maintaining (1) 10:6
major (1) 50:8
majority (2) 19:25;26:7
makes (2) 6:24;11:25
making (6) 27:7;30:8;
    42:22;44:14;49:22;
    51:9
man (1) 27:11
managed (1) 51:12
many (4) 23:13;24:11,
    23;35:2
March (2) 5:19;6:20
Maricopa (2) 13:17;
    43:12
materials (1) 8:1
matter (4) 13:13;19:3;
    25:10;49:8
matters (7) 13:5,10,11;
    18:17,17;22:17;25:22
May (17) 8:5;13:13;
    22:2,3,4,7,9;26:25;
    35:22;39:7;43:23;44:9;
    45:3;46:9;48:15;49:1;
    54:2
maybe (6) 15:23;27:24;
    36:19;40:7,24;43:11
mean (21) 9:19;10:10;
    15:2;16:25;17:13;18:6,
    15;19:2;25:9;31:15,22;
    32:10,12,16;39:3;
    40:15;42:2,5,17;43:1;
    48:15
means (3) 45:20,23;
    49:13
meant (1) 34:24
media (2) 27:25;44:4
meeting (9) 3:18,24,25;
    5:19;8:14;28:10;29:7;
    54:6,24
meetings (1) 36:13
members (2) 26:7,8
memory (1) 16:5
mention (2) 25:17;31:1
mentioned (3) 25:18;
    45:10;46:3
messages (1) 36:5
met (1) 10:12
Meyer (24) 4:13,14;
    7:10,11;33:15,16;38:1,

    2,4,5,17,24;42:1,2,4,
    12;44:21,22,24,25;
    54:9,9,18,19
might (2) 21:24;25:12
Mike (6) 28:10;29:7;
    47:21;48:1;50:25;52:9
million (1) 23:15
mind (2) 32:14;38:23
minds (1) 42:20
minutes (3) 5:18;6:13,
    19
Miracle (1) 23:22
moderate (1) 36:23
moderator (1) 36:2
moderators (1) 35:13
modifications (3) 8:20;
    11:5,7
modified (2) 8:17;11:19
modify (1) 11:20
moment (1) 38:25
Monday (1) 26:24
money (2) 49:2;51:7
monies (1) 50:10
month (5) 8:5;22:11;
    33:2,2,8
months (3) 18:3;24:7;
    48:16
Montini (1) 43:11
moot (1) 25:3
more (11) 9:21;22:24;
    24:20;27:16;33:7;37:1,
    4,7;38:23;42:14,22
morning (3) 4:10;34:12,
    14
most (6) 15:25;25:19;
    36:12;38:25;45:15;
    51:6
mostly (1) 48:4
motion (14) 5:22,24;
    6:1,10,12,18;23:9,11;
    24:10,14,16;54:3,5,12
mounting (1) 17:4
move (2) 15:3;52:17
moved (2) 15:5;17:15
moves (1) 17:12
moving (5) 5:9,17;7:16,
    18;47:18
much (12) 10:12;17:5;
    22:21;30:5,6;35:20;
    41:13;47:14;51:2,6;
    54:25;55:5
must (1) 44:15
mute (2) 38:6;46:22
myself (3) 9:18;10:9;
    53:20

N

nailed (1) 16:12
name (1) 19:15
narrow (1) 9:6
Nation (1) 36:19
nature (1) 17:9

Navajo (2) 12:4;36:19
near (1) 32:15
need (9) 9:2;10:18,20;
    35:19;40:23;41:11,15;
    44:3;46:10
needed (3) 25:15,15;
    46:22
Network (1) 13:20
Nevertheless (1) 50:19
new (9) 8:2;9:20;12:17,
    17;32:7;34:18;37:3,12,
    13
next (8) 8:5;11:10;
    12:20;33:21;37:18;
    39:15;45:3;48:20
Ninth (7) 14:2,25;
    15:10;16:6;17:7;19:18;
    25:8
nominating (1) 32:7
non-request (2) 42:23,
    25
norm (1) 34:18
normal (1) 9:20
northeast (1) 12:3
note (4) 13:4;31:16;
    53:1,2
notice (1) 31:6
noticed (1) 31:11
notwithstanding (1)
    12:2
November (3) 10:18;
    15:22;23:6
number (3) 40:21;47:5,
    18

O

obtain (1) 8:25
obviously (10) 9:6;
    11:25;12:3,4;16:14;
    17:24;20:17;22:24;
    32:16;49:3
occupancy (1) 12:8
occur (1) 17:16
occurred (1) 23:9
occurring (1) 35:18
oddity (1) 19:18
off (3) 30:3;46:22;
    53:21
office (14) 8:24;9:2;
    10:4,7;13:14,25;29:20;
    32:12,14,15;35:22;
    40:13;41:20;45:18
offices (1) 13:16
officials (3) 8:12;14:14;
    40:12
once (3) 12:21;16:11;
    30:3
One (13) 11:25;12:13;
    16:3;22:11,13,18,21;
    24:14,24;27:11;28:1;
    53:5,23
ones (1) 25:14

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(4) Joining - ones



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Transcript of Proceedings / Public Meeting
April 30, 2020

one-time (5) 40:4,7,10,
    18;44:14
online (1) 8:9
only (5) 22:7;24:14,15;
    28:1;48:15
on-the-ground (1)
    34:23
open (4) 8:24;10:4,7;
    35:4
opened (1) 12:7
operating (3) 8:21;9:5;
    17:18
OPERATOR (2) 28:10;
    29:7
opinion (2) 14:2;17:7
opportunity (3) 40:24;
    44:6;45:24
opposed (1) 43:6
options (6) 39:22;41:8,
    12;42:6;44:2,7
oral (1) 13:19
order (9) 3:18,24;4:1;
    5:13;8:17;12:14,14;
    19:19;21:2
others (4) 13:13;21:13;
    25:17;51:9
otherwise (1) 50:16
ours (1) 43:17
ourselves (1) 30:3
out (23) 5:12,13;10:19;
    12:9;15:24;16:8,12;
    17:11;22:11,12;23:15;
    25:11;27:13;28:2;
    30:18;33:18,18;40:20;
    43:12,24;49:2;52:2;
    54:8
outcome (2) 22:20,20
outlined (1) 49:12
outlook (4) 47:19;
    48:13;52:5,17
outreach (6) 8:9;10:16;
    44:19;46:1,14;51:8
outstanding (2) 13:9;
    47:8
over (14) 7:21;23:15;
    27:2;28:20;32:18,19;
    33:8;36:2;39:25;44:24;
    48:14,20;49:14;51:13
overall (1) 37:8
overview (1) 37:8
own (1) 50:24

P

page (3) 12:22;35:15,
    18
paid (2) 44:4;45:24
pandemic (6) 10:22;
    11:4;27:8,15;38:9;39:1
part (6) 14:9;20:11;
    49:6;50:12,17,17
participating (1) 31:16
particular (1) 40:9

particularly (2) 17:17;
    19:24
partner (2) 36:22;41:20
partners (1) 34:25
partnership (1) 45:18
party (1) 44:17
pass (1) 43:15
passionate (1) 27:7
past (2) 30:3;33:8
Paton (37) 3:3,6,9,12,
    15;4:5,7;7:4,6;15:15,
    17,18,20;16:2,20,22,
    23;17:3,22,24,25;18:7;
    32:2,3,5,6,10,21;33:4,
    5,21,24;54:2,4,5,14,15
pattern (1) 26:9
Paula (4) 8:25;9:2;
    47:2,2
Paula's (1) 47:7
pay (1) 51:7
people (22) 10:19,19,
    21,21,23;14:24;15:25,
    25;16:13;27:16,24;
    28:3;30:6,9,10,10;
    36:12;38:19;39:4,10;
    40:21;53:1
per (1) 40:7
percent (3) 12:8;41:10,
    12
percentagewise (2)
    23:17,18
perhaps (3) 26:5;
    36:15;54:2
period (1) 13:15
permanent (6) 27:25;
    28:4,7;40:3,8,17
person (6) 5:5;10:7;
    28:1;30:13;39:23;
    40:21
personally (2) 9:18;
    27:19
perspective (1) 22:10
petition (3) 14:1;23:23;
    25:11
petitions (1) 24:4
PEVL (2) 30:2;44:14
Phoenix (1) 27:13
phone (3) 5:4;6:25;
    28:20
PI (2) 21:24,24
piece (5) 9:6;16:3,16;
    44:18;45:3
pipe (1) 18:19
place (9) 15:7;17:8;
    18:24,24;19:10;21:6;
    27:9;38:11;39:11
placed (1) 24:2
places (1) 27:9
Plaintiffs (4) 20:23;
    23:10;24:5,23
Plaintiff's (1) 23:25
plan (6) 11:18;41:3,8,
    18,19;45:17

planning (2) 29:2;38:11
plans (6) 34:17;36:14,
    17,18;38:11;39:9
platform (3) 35:12;37:3,
    12
play (1) 52:2
please (8) 3:18;4:3;
    5:10;7:22;19:15;26:18;
    45:6;53:13
pleased (1) 10:1
pm (1) 21:1
point (4) 13:24;17:4;
    25:4;28:2
policy (3) 9:3;28:17;
    43:21
polling (4) 15:7;27:9;
    38:12;42:8
polls (3) 20:25;38:13;
    39:5
pollworker (5) 34:7;
    39:16;45:4,21;46:6
pollworkers (5) 28:6;
    45:12,13;46:4,12
position (6) 25:22;
    28:17;31:7;45:24;47:9;
    51:17
possibility (2) 41:5;
    42:19
possible (9) 5:18;7:19;
    16:19;30:5,7;34:5;
    35:20;47:19;48:22
post (2) 35:6;36:20
posted (1) 25:1
postmark (3) 21:3,5,18
potential (2) 46:5;50:24
potentially (1) 14:13
PPE (3) 16:7;27:9;
    30:11
practical (1) 25:10
practice (2) 35:8;37:10
precinct (3) 13:16;
    14:10,25
precise (1) 16:19
predict (1) 20:12
prediction (1) 17:19
Preference (4) 16:7,9;
    26:8;27:17
preliminary (4) 23:10;
    24:6,8,25
presence (1) 4:4
Present (2) 4:14;53:6
president (1) 29:5
Presidential (4) 16:7,8;
    18:1;27:17
press (3) 11:21;12:20;
    26:4
pressures (1) 50:21
presumably (1) 22:16
pretty (3) 9:22;51:6,13
primary (4) 22:24;23:3;
    29:11;44:17
principle (1) 19:22
prior (2) 50:5,11

probably (8) 12:13;
    17:12;21:11;26:1;
    29:18;33:2;38:7;53:21
problem (2) 3:16;49:17
procedural (5) 9:4;
    19:14,17;21:22;24:1
procedurally (1) 20:7
procedure (1) 20:10
procedures (1) 18:5
proceedings (1) 55:6
process (8) 24:2;34:21;
    35:11;36:6;37:17;
    40:19;46:9;49:21
processes (2) 24:21,22
produce (1) 37:7
programs (1) 46:1
projection (1) 49:25
proper (1) 14:25
Protection (1) 49:9
provide (2) 34:15;36:4
public (12) 30:10;35:4,
    24;36:10;37:14;41:23;
    52:17,19;53:6,11,18,23
Purcell (1) 19:22
purposes (3) 16:6;25:3;
    49:12
put (8) 16:12;22:10;
    24:21;28:8,15;29:12,
    18,21
putting (2) 17:10;30:9

Q

quick (5) 9:13;13:4;
    25:16,25;26:19
quickly (2) 11:22;24:20
quo (3) 43:7,8;44:11
quote (2) 49:14,23

R

rabble-rouser (1) 30:22
Rainy (1) 48:24
range (1) 48:22
rapidly (1) 17:15
rather (5) 3:22;17:12;
    18:2;20:24;30:4
reach (2) 41:11;53:16
real (8) 17:3;19:8;
    24:19;25:16,25;35:16;
    36:3;42:7
reality (3) 43:9;50:4,10
really (19) 9:3;10:11;
    22:12;25:23;31:10,15;
    35:7;37:8;39:14;42:20;
    43:16;47:8,10,13,13,
    17;48:14;51:1,2
reason (4) 20:12;
    29:25;37:2;49:6
reasonable (1) 51:13
recap (1) 24:20
received (3) 21:19;
    36:7;52:20

recessed (1) 26:3
recession (2) 50:5,7
recognize (4) 6:5,6,8;
    9:15
recommending (1) 34:5
record (5) 3:22;4:4;
    6:25;35:5;53:3
Recorder (1) 43:12
recorders (1) 44:16
recording (1) 36:20
recovery (2) 49:4,4
recruitment (4) 34:8;
    39:17;45:4;46:6
reduce (2) 35:9;40:21
referendum (2) 24:4,22
referring (1) 19:16
refuse (1) 46:4
regarding (4) 6:11;9:4;
    11:4;26:20
regardless (2) 22:19;
    46:7
regards (1) 19:20
register (1) 27:25
registered (1) 43:25
regular (1) 43:18
regulations (1) 13:1
Regulatory (1) 31:19
rehash (1) 24:19
rejected (2) 23:13,14
related (3) 11:18;13:5;
    14:2
relaxed (1) 37:1
reliant (1) 15:6
relief (6) 20:23;22:16;
    23:2;24:6,8;25:1
remember (5) 18:20,20,
    21;19:1;27:23
removed (2) 50:8,14
remunerations (1) 48:8
reopen (2) 11:14;12:24
repeatedly (1) 17:12
replacement (1) 40:24
report (7) 7:20,20;13:6,
    7;31:23;47:20;52:13
reporter (1) 6:3
reports (1) 8:2
Republic (1) 43:10
request (9) 29:10;40:2,
    2,4,7,10,18;41:23;
    44:15
requesting (1) 41:9
requests (1) 43:13
required (3) 14:24;
    40:23;51:8
requirement (2) 15:1;
    39:6
requirements (1) 14:12
requiring (1) 30:9
reservation (1) 12:4
resolution (1) 27:3
resolving (1) 24:3
respect (6) 12:6,15,25;
    29:2;31:4,6

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(5) one-time - respect



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Transcript of Proceedings / Public Meeting
April 30, 2020

responding (1) 23:11
response (4) 34:2;
    37:21;46:20;52:10
responsibilities (1)
    45:23
restaurants (3) 11:17;
    12:6,9
restrictions (3) 12:15,
    24;24:1
restricts (1) 14:3
resulting (1) 48:7
retail (3) 11:13;12:13,
    24
return (1) 20:22
returning (1) 27:2
revenue (4) 50:3,22,24;
    51:15
revenues (2) 48:9;
    50:15
Review (1) 31:19
revise (1) 17:11
right (36) 5:8,9,23;6:18,
    22;7:3,16,23;10:22;
    13:17;14:11;18:8,9;
    19:23;22:14;23:22;
    24:12,13,13;25:7,24;
    33:25;34:12;35:3;
    36:11;37:15,22,23;
    41:5,10,21;43:21;53:7,
    21;54:11;55:4
rights (1) 24:5
risk (1) 46:5
Roberts (11) 34:9,10,
    14;37:24;38:16;39:13;
    42:3,11;43:22;45:2,9
roll (5) 3:19;6:22;43:8;
    48:20;54:13
rollover (1) 49:15
rolls (2) 43:3;49:14
room (1) 28:24
run (2) 9:2;51:11
runs (2) 38:10;49:2
rural (1) 15:4

S

safe (2) 10:6;12:25
safety (3) 11:15;13:1;
    30:5
same (1) 47:15
saw (3) 35:7;39:3;
    49:14
saying (2) 21:2;45:1
schools (2) 9:23;35:2
season (2) 18:9;51:5
second (6) 4:25;6:16,
    18;54:8,10,12
Secretary (6) 18:22;
    32:14;40:12;41:19;
    45:18;46:1
Secretary's (1) 29:20
section (1) 39:15
secure (1) 35:1

seeing (1) 46:4
seek (1) 21:1
seeking (4) 20:23;
    21:20;23:2,6
seem (1) 41:5
seems (1) 36:10
select (1) 8:6
self-quarantining (1)
    12:16
selling (1) 11:13
Senate (1) 29:5
sending (1) 43:12
sense (2) 11:25;21:22
sent (4) 22:11,12;
    42:25;48:9
serve (5) 14:1;45:12,
    16,20,22
services (2) 11:12,13
Services' (1) 8:11
session (6) 26:7,11,12;
    42:18;47:16;49:14
set (3) 49:24;50:1;51:6
sets (1) 43:6
seven (3) 21:17,19;
    51:14
several (5) 18:3;36:4,
    23;39:22;40:12
shape (1) 30:17
share (1) 34:19
shifted (1) 8:9
short (1) 52:3
shortfall (1) 49:2
shortfalls (1) 50:22
short-term (3) 48:13;
    52:5,5
showing (1) 15:7
side (1) 45:15
signatures (1) 25:11
significant (2) 50:6,15
significantly (2) 47:3;
    50:1
similar (3) 33:10;45:25;
    46:2
simple (1) 40:10
simply (2) 26:6;27:1
sincere (1) 47:17
sine (1) 26:6
single (2) 30:13,13
situation (3) 9:5;32:23;
    48:7
slate (2) 5:20;6:13
slight (1) 21:13
smoothly (1) 31:18
social (7) 9:23;10:6;
    27:25;35:8;37:11;39:2,
    6
socially (1) 28:9
somebody (1) 3:7
someone (3) 6:5,5;13:8
sometimes (1) 19:7
soon (1) 17:16
sooner (1) 30:4
Sorry (15) 5:1;14:7,8,

    16,19;22:3;24:19;
    26:23;28:19;29:15;
    30:21;38:1,3,12;44:23
sort (6) 9:1;12:8;21:23;
    26:9;31:20;43:20
sought (2) 16:5,6
Sounds (1) 3:13
sources (2) 50:9;51:15
spacing (1) 12:25
speak (1) 44:24
speaking (2) 9:18;
    14:18
specific (3) 11:6;12:5;
    15:8
specifically (2) 9:11;
    15:5
specifics (1) 27:10
speculation (2) 51:2,3
spoiled (1) 41:1
staff (12) 9:17;10:1,15;
    32:16;34:4,16,24;
    35:10;36:1;41:7,17;
    46:10
stance (1) 41:22
stand (1) 32:6
standard (1) 9:1
standpoint (1) 20:11
stands (1) 15:10
start (3) 4:6;43:25;
    49:15
started (3) 19:17;49:17,
    17
state (18) 4:3;8:15;9:4;
    10:20,20;12:1,4;13:20,
    22;16:4,5;18:22;29:11;
    43:21;46:2;48:9,13,24
stated (1) 11:5
statement (3) 10:15;
    49:18,20
statements (2) 11:23;
    17:11
states (5) 12:7;20:2;
    45:11,25;46:3
State's (4) 32:15;40:13;
    41:20;45:18
statewide (1) 13:15
status (3) 43:7,8;44:11
stay (7) 16:5,6,9;17:8;
    19:10;24:9,9
step (2) 44:15;45:22
steps (2) 12:20;41:15
Steve (1) 10:13
stick (1) 33:21
still (11) 10:17,17,23;
    17:5;26:11;28:7;30:17,
    18;39:2;40:23,23
stop (2) 5:10;28:15
story (3) 27:11;50:17;
    52:3
stream (1) 35:14
streaming (1) 36:20
stretch (1) 38:25
strike (2) 14:3;20:3

strikes (1) 14:9
striking (1) 19:19
struck (1) 15:1
stuff (3) 30:1,15,21
submit (2) 35:23;53:23
submitted (1) 25:12
subsequently (1) 8:16
substantial (1) 12:1
substantive (1) 37:7
sufficient (1) 46:12
suggesting (1) 26:5
Superior (1) 13:17
Supreme (9) 14:1;
    16:24;17:7;18:25;19:1,
    2,21;20:2,2
Sure (14) 3:20;5:14;
    6:7;18:21;25:24;35:19;
    38:16,18,21;44:18;
    46:9;47:14;52:24;54:4
surrounding (1) 46:7
survived (1) 24:16
suspect (1) 31:8
system (1) 39:10

T

tag (1) 43:23
talk (4) 20:18;29:24;
    30:25;42:19
talked (2) 43:12;52:16
talking (1) 21:16
tap (1) 48:23
tax (2) 50:13,13
technology (1) 15:8
telework (1) 8:23
tend (1) 30:22
term (1) 49:15
terms (9) 22:15,15;
    29:25;31:19,20;35:8;
    39:19;41:6,22
thanks (1) 33:11
theoretically (1) 25:2
theory (1) 16:18
THOMAS (1) 47:11
thought (4) 19:24;
    30:23;39:9;40:19
three (4) 32:17;33:19;
    42:21,21
throughout (2) 26:11;
    35:25
thus (1) 8:12
timed (1) 33:18
Times (2) 36:23;50:4
timing (1) 23:5
Titla (18) 4:8,10,21;6:1,
    6,8,10,12;7:7,9;10:13,
    14;11:9;13:2;33:12,14;
    54:16,17
today (4) 25:23;47:21;
    52:19;53:6
together (2) 28:8;47:16
Tom (30) 5:10,20;6:23;
    7:21;9:12;11:4;14:8;

    15:15,17;19:10;26:14;
    29:16;31:13;32:1;
    33:11;34:1;38:8;41:4;
    42:13;44:22;45:1;
    46:24;47:11,12,21;
    52:7,9,16;53:19;54:25
took (2) 20:1;26:1
top (7) 9:8;24:2,21;
    32:13,22;46:6;53:21
topic (1) 29:20
touch (1) 30:13
touching (1) 30:14
touchscreen (2) 28:12;
    30:16
toward (1) 50:7
transitioned (1) 35:10
transitioning (1) 36:6
traumatic (2) 9:19,22
travel (1) 12:15
traveling (1) 34:25
trial (1) 25:20
tried (1) 7:25
troublesome (1) 45:7
trumpet (1) 15:24
try (4) 12:1;20:8;42:6,
    19
trying (4) 20:12;22:15;
    28:2,14
turn (1) 7:21
turned (1) 33:3
twice (1) 12:21
two (11) 11:23,23;
    13:10;19:11;26:10;
    28:23;42:21;43:6;
    48:15;50:8;51:15
type (1) 36:7
typically (3) 12:21;
    45:13,15

U

unable (1) 53:12
unanimous (1) 19:21
unauthorized (1) 16:17
uncomfortable (1)
    30:19
under (6) 11:14;12:24;
    17:18;23:23;49:25;
    50:2
understood (1) 38:21
United (1) 20:2
universe (1) 43:1
unless (2) 13:8;19:9
unrolling (1) 30:17
up (16) 8:4;10:18;13:6;
    15:7;18:19;22:14;
    27:17;28:15,20;29:25;
    30:23;34:19;39:5;
    45:22;48:15;53:25
update (1) 52:12
updates (2) 8:2;34:16
use (2) 28:12;49:15
using (1) 27:24

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(6) responding - using



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Transcript of Proceedings / Public Meeting
April 30, 2020

utilizing (1) 35:12

V

various (1) 24:1
vast (1) 19:25
vendors (1) 47:4
VI (3) 13:4,7;52:11
view (2) 32:21;35:15
VIII (1) 54:1
virtual (2) 35:11;36:13
virus (2) 39:7,12
voluntary (1) 50:13
vote (22) 6:22;7:5,8,15;
    10:24,25;14:24;15:4,5;
    27:20;31:10;38:20;
    39:11,21,23;40:5,9;
    41:11,14;44:13;54:14,
    23
voted (2) 27:11;30:11
voter (25) 17:4;28:5,7,
    25;29:18,24;31:1;34:6,
    17;36:15;39:16;40:1,
    15;41:6,7,18,22;43:18,
    18,24,25;45:19;46:13;
    49:9;51:7
voters (30) 15:7;28:1;
    30:2,19;34:24;35:10,
    15,17,20,21;37:14;
    39:21;40:6,20,23;41:8,
    11;42:25;43:1,2,3,4,4,
    13;44:7,12,13,15;
    45:20;49:10
votes (1) 28:4
voting (12) 27:8;38:13;
    39:8,25;40:3,8,17,21;
    42:7,9;44:1;46:9
Voto (1) 20:19

W

Wait (1) 14:16
waiting (1) 46:21
wants (4) 11:20;13:8;
    42:24;48:1
watching (2) 26:10;
    53:11
way (8) 15:24;18:12;
    19:7;31:11;47:15;51:2,
    12;52:4
ways (4) 28:24;37:14;
    53:17,24
website (2) 8:7;53:17
week (4) 11:11,19;
    12:21;13:23
weeks (1) 43:11
well-informed (1) 25:22
what's (1) 25:20
Whereupon (1) 55:6
wide (1) 48:22
widespread (1) 9:6
willing (2) 45:12,21
Wisconsin (2) 27:14;

    39:4
wish (1) 44:13
without (7) 17:21;27:2;
    28:20;29:10;31:22,22;
    47:10
witness (1) 20:4
wonder (1) 10:23
word (1) 10:19
work (7) 9:17;10:2;
    12:1;18:8;46:4;47:2,7
worked (3) 18:16;
    51:23;55:3
workers (1) 28:6
working (6) 8:25;21:7;
    41:7,17,18;49:19
works (1) 10:8
world (2) 10:11;36:12
worse (1) 39:3
worth (2) 11:24;20:17
wrapped (1) 13:5
wrinkle (1) 21:14
writing (1) 5:8
wrong (3) 5:13;48:2,4

Y

year (16) 27:8;28:17,
    19;30:2;33:21;36:23;
    37:2;41:13;45:7,17;
    46:7;48:14,16,19,20;
    49:25
years (3) 14:24;19:17;
    51:14
yesterday (3) 8:17;
    11:6,20
York (1) 12:17
YouTube (3) 12:22;
    35:15,18

Z

zero (1) 23:19
Zoom (3) 35:12,14;
    36:13

1

1.7 (1) 23:15
1.8 (1) 23:15
10:41 (1) 55:7
11 (1) 31:17
11th (1) 8:16
16 (2) 5:19;6:20
19th (1) 8:5
1st (2) 26:25;48:15

2

2,500 (1) 23:15
20 (1) 41:12
2000s (1) 50:12
2008 (1) 50:5
2012 (1) 50:8

2018 (1) 23:14
2020 (7) 3:25;5:19,19;
    6:19,20;17:17;51:19
2021 (1) 51:21
22 (2) 20:3;49:1
25 (1) 12:8
27 (2) 5:19;6:19
2nd (1) 25:10

3

30th (1) 3:25
364-3477 (1) 53:14
38 (1) 31:16

4

4th (3) 27:20,22,24

5

50 (1) 14:23
50/50 (1) 22:8

6

602 (1) 53:14
6th (1) 27:21

7

7:00 (1) 21:1

8

80 (1) 41:10
8th (1) 22:12

9

9:32 (1) 3:25
9th (1) 48:21

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(7) utilizing - 9th



 

    

ITEM III 

CITIZENS CLEAN ELECTIONS COMMISSION  
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 

June 25, 2020  
Announcements:  

• The public can view Commission meetings live via the internet at 
www.livestream.com/cleanelections. A link is available on our website. 

Voter Education: 

Outreach: 

• Avery continues to meet with Mesa Community College's Civic Engagement Team 
(MCC Votes) On Mondays to plan future virtual events. 

• Avery has continued his collaboration efforts with ASU's Voter Mobilization Planning 
Committee via Zoom. 

• Avery continues to represent Clean Elections in the virtual Youth Leadership and 
Development meetings sponsored by Opportunities for Youth via Video Conference. 

• The Voter Ed team produced an American Sign Language Voter Education Guide, for 
the primary, in a partnership with Arizona Commission for the Deaf and the Hard of 
Hearing and Linda Bove from Sesame Street.  

• Exec. Director Tom Collins and the Voter Ed team met with the Maricopa County 
Recorder's and Elections office in virtual conference to discuss primary election 
messaging and voter education. May 28, 2020 

• Avery represented Clean Elections by attending the video conference sponsored by 
MCRO, "The Presidential Preference Election Debrief and Preparing for the Arizona 
Primary" June 4, 2020 

• Gina and Alec met with the Arizona Center for Disability Law to discuss outreach efforts 
for voters with disabilities. 

• CCEC Staff will participate in a panel discussion in the Arizona Capitol Times Morning 
Scoop segment on June 30th on the Primary Election. 

• Commissioner Chan, Avery and Gina gave a presentation to a few high school seniors 
who are launching a human rights group on how to participate in the primary election.  

• Gina and Alec participated in a conference call with the county election directors to 
discuss vital messaging for voters in the primary election.  
 

Primary Election: 

• Primary Election = Tuesday, August 4, 2020 
o Voter Registration Deadline = July 6, 2020 
o Early voting begins = July 8, 2020 
o UOCAVA ballots have been mailed 

• The Voter Education Guide began arriving at the post offices today for delivery to 
households. All guides will be in homes before the start of early voting (July 8th).  

o The Voter Guide was shipped to UOCAVA voters on June 18th. 

• Primary Election Debates will wrap on July 8th.  

• Alec has been working with the counties and local jurisdictions to develop the primary 
election pages on our websites, which includes information on the voting process 
specific to the county.  

• Staff published new content on the CCEC website related to the ballot by mail process 
and election security.  
 

http://www.livestream.com/cleanelections


 

    

ITEM III 

 
Administration: 

• Government offices continue to remain open with minimal staff working in the buildings. 
Based on guidance from the Governor’s office, AZDHS & CDC, the direction continues 
to be to utilize telework to the greatest extent possible.  CEC staff remains on an 
extended telework schedule with minimal staff in the office during the week. In order to 
reduce exposure to COVID-19, staff continues to practice social distancing, wear masks 
and electronic changes have been implemented to reduce incoming traffic.   

 
 
Miscellaneous  
 

• Outstanding legal matters   
o Legacy Foundation Action Fund 

▪ Pending answering brief from LFAF.  
o AZAN v. State et. al. 

▪ Oral argument was held earlier this month. Please see attached 
news story for summary.   

o State Ex Rel Brnovich v. Ariz. Board of Regents. 
▪ Awaiting Arizona Supreme Court Opinion.the near future.  

o Brnovich v. Democratic National Committee 
▪ Petition for Certiorari filed 4/27 
▪ Secretary Hobbs opposes. 
▪ Main issue is 9th Cir. (en banc) striking down Arizona law 

restricting the collection of ballots. 
o Voto Latino v. Hobbs  

▪ Arizona District Court  
▪ Settled in mid-June, please see attached settlement agreement 

and statement from Secretary Hobbs. 
o Miracle v. Hobbs 

▪ First and Fourteenth Amendment challenge to restriction on the 
right to petition for initiatives under Arizona Constitution.  

▪ Appeal pending denial of Preliminary Relief.     
.     

• Legislature 
o The Legislature adjourned sine die in May.  There have been discussions 

of a potential special session to address issues potentially including 
COVID-19, Police Reform, and state budget issue.  According to reports, 
special session unlikely before August primary.  JLBC projections show 
anticipated budget impact of COVID is lower now than in April. 
 

• Appointments 
o No additional information at this time.  

• Rules  
o GRRC approved final versions of R2-20-701, -702, -702.01, and 703.01.  

 

• Number of Participating Candidates – 38 

• Participating Candidates Funded - 11 































 

1 

FIVE YEAR REVIEW REPORT 

Citizens Clean Elections Commission 

A.A.C. Title 2, Chapter 20, All Articles 

 

This report covers all rules in A.A.C. Title 2, Chapter 20, all articles. The Citizens Clean Elections 

Commission (the “Commission”) adopted these rules to further the goals of the Citizens Clean 

Elections Act (“Act”).  The Act was passed by the voters in 1998 and created the clean elections 

system to diminish the influence of special-interest money, including the opportunities for and 

appearance of quid pro quo corruption, and thereby to promote the integrity of Arizona state 

government. The Act promotes freedom of speech under the United States and Arizona 

Constitutions. It also created a voluntary system wherein participating candidates receive public 

funds to finance campaigns. To qualify for funding, participating candidates must follow the rules 

and reporting requirements adopted by the Commission. The Act also applies to candidates who are 

nonparticipating candidates and independent spenders in elections. The Rules implement the 

provisions of the Act. All rules created or amended prior to June 25, 2013 have been “pre-cleared” 

by the U.S. Department of Justice pursuant to Section Five of the Federal Voting Rights Act. 

 

The Commission reports the following analysis of its rules in the order required by Arizona 

Administrative Code (“A.A.C.”) R1-6-301. Pursuant to A.A.C. R1-6-301(B), Part I includes 

information pertaining to all, or a great number, of the rules. Part II reports information unique to 

individual rules. 

 

This report is made without waiver of any of the Commission’s legal positions concerning the 

Commission’s rulemaking authority or the Governor’s Regulatory Review Council’s authority under 

A.R.S. § 41-1056. 

 

Part I: Analysis Which Is Identical for all Rules 

 

1. Effectiveness of the rule in achieving the objective 

 

All the rules are effective in achieving their objectives as stated below. 

 

2. Written criticisms of the Rules Received in the Past Five Years 

  

 The Commission has not received any written criticisms of the rules in the past five years. 

 

3. Authorization of the Rules by Existing Statutes 

 

The Commission‘s general rulemaking authority is found in A.R.S. §§ 16-940 through 16-

961 and  A.R.S. § 16-956 (C) gives the Commission specific authority to adopt rules to carry 

out the purposes of the Article and to govern procedures of the Commission.   

 

4. Consistency of the rule with state and federal statutes and rules and enforcement 

 



 

2 

In the process of preparing this report the rules have been compared against each other and 

A.R.S. §§ 16-940 through 16-961 and the Commission has determined the rules are 

consistent and enforced as written.    

  

5.  Clarity, conciseness, and understandability of the rule 

 

All the rules are clear, concise, and understandable. 

 

6. Economic, Small Business, and Consumer Impact Comparison 

 

The economic impact has not differed from that projected when the rules were 

adopted/amended.  The rules create no discernible economic impact for small businesses or 

consumers.  For small businesses or consumers who make expenditures subject to the 

rules’ reporting requirements, compliance with the rules imposes zero economic impact 

because the reporting requirement is simple and may be filed without any filing fee. To the 

extent that the obligation to file a report itself imposes an economic impact, that impact 

comes from the statutory reporting requirement and not from the rules.  A failure to abide 

by any of the statutes or rules may create an economic impact on those subject to the 

penalties the Commission may impose.   

 

The main costs are born by the Commission and include staff time to process reports.  The 

Commission receives funds from the following sources: 

 

• A 10% surcharge imposed on all civil and criminal fines and penalties collected 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 12-116.01; 

• A $5 voluntary contribution per taxpayer ($10 when married and filing jointly) who 

files an Arizona state income tax return and marks an optional check-off box on the 

first page of the form. A taxpayer who checks this box receives a $5 reduction in 

tax liability and $5 goes to the Clean Elections Fund (NOTE: As of August 2, 2012, 

the Commission only receives $5 voluntary taxpayer contributions from individuals 

filing tax returns for tax years 2012 and earlier.); 

• A voluntary donation to the Clean Elections Fund by designating the Fund on an 

income tax return form filed by the individual or business entity, or by making a 

payment directly to the Fund. Any taxpayer making a donation shall receive a 

dollar-for-dollar tax credit not to exceed 20 percent of the tax amount on the return 

or $680 per taxpayer, whichever is higher (NOTE: As of August 2, 2012, the 

Commission no longer accepts donations for the dollar-for-dollar tax credit.); 

• Qualifying contributions received by participating candidates; and 

• Civil penalties assessed against violators of the Citizens Clean Elections Act. 

 

7. Analysis Submitted by Another Person Regarding the Rules’ Impact on this State’s 

Business Competitiveness as Compared to the Competitiveness of Businesses in Other 

States 

 

No analysis has been submitted to the Commission. 

 



 

3 

8. Completion of the Previous Five-Year –Review Report Process   

   

The last five-year-review report was completed and did not identify any needed course of 

action, with the exception of R2-20-206 and R2-20-208 which are discussed individually 

below. 

 

9. Probable Benefits Outweigh Probable Costs / Rules Impose Least Burden on 

Regulated Persons 

 

In the process of preparing this report, the Commission has determined that the rules 

achieve their regulatory objectives with the least burden and cost possible, and the probable 

benefits of the rules outweigh the probable costs.  

 

10. Corresponding federal law 

 

There are no corresponding federal laws. 

 

11. Compliance with A.R.S. § 41-1037 

 

Commission rules do not require the issuance of a regulatory permit, license, or agency 

authorization. 

 

12. Course of action the agency proposes to take regarding each rule 

 

The Commission does not propose any course of action for the rules.. 

 

Part II: Analysis of Individual Rules 

 

ARTICLE 1 – GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

R2-20-101.  Definitions 

 

1. Objective 

 

Supplement the definitions provided in A.R.S. §§16-901 and 16-961 for Chapter 20 of the 

Arizona Administrative Code, which includes the Commission rules. 

 

R2-20-103. Communications: Time and Method 

 

1. Objective 

 

Clarify procedures for computing periods of time and methods of communicating between 

the candidate and the Commission. 

 

R2-20-104. Certification as a Participating Candidate 

 



 

4 

1. Objective 

 

Provide guidance on filing an application for certification and electronic campaign finance 

reports; accepting contributions and making expenditures; and requirements for a 

nonparticipating candidate to be eligible for participating candidate status. 

 

R2-20-105. Certification for Funding 

 

1. Objective 

 

Provide the process for certifying clean elections candidates. 

 

R2-20-106. Distribution of Funds to Certified Candidates 

 

1. Objective 

 

Provide the process and criteria for the Commission to evaluate a candidate’s application 

for funding. 

 

R2-20-107. Candidate Debates 

 

1. Objective 

 

Provide procedures for conducting debates, for candidates seeking to be excused from 

participation in the debates and the penalty for failing to participate in the debates. 

 

R2-20-108. Termination of Participating Candidate Status 

 

1. Objective 

 

Provide a method for candidates to withdraw their application for certification or funding. 

 

R2-20-109. Independent Expenditure Reporting Requirements 

 

1. Objective 

 

Provide the requirements for the submission of independent expenditure reports. 

 

R2-20-110. Participating Candidate Reporting Requirements 

 

1. Objective 

 

Provide the reporting requirements of participating candidates.   

 

R2-20-111. Non-participating Candidate Reporting Requirements and Contribution 

Limits 



 

5 

 

1. Objective 

 

Provide the reporting requirements of non-participating candidates.  

 

R2-20-112.  Political Party Exceptions 

 

1. Objective 

 

Provide guidance on the scope of the political party exceptions in A.R.S. § 16-911(B)(4) to 

the definitions of contributions and expenditures in A.R.S. § 16-901(5), (8).Note, A.R.S. § 

16-911(B)(4)(b) is  currently subject to the injunctionin Arizona Advocacy Network Fdn. 

v. State, CV2017-096705 (Ariz. Sup. Ct. Maricopa June 5, 2019).   

 

R2-20-113.  Candidate Statement Pamphlet 

 

1. Objective 

 

Provide procedures for candidate eligibility and submission of statements for the 

Commission’s primary and general election candidate statement pamphlets in accordance 

with A.R.S. § 16-956. 

 

R2-20-114.  Candidate Campaign Bank Account 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify the method for maintaining campaign accounts. 

 

R2-20-115.  Books and Records Requirements 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify the manner for keeping records and giving the public access to campaign records. 

 

ARTICLE 2 – COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURES 

 

R2-20-201.  Scope 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify the scope of the rules. 

 

R2-20-202.  Initiation of Compliance Matters 

 

1. Objective 

 



 

6 

Describe methods for initiating an enforcement matter. 

 

R2-20-203.  Complaints 

 

1. Objective 

 

Provide the process for filing a complaint. 

 

R2-20-204.   Initial Complaint Processing; Notification 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify the procedures for processing complaints. 

 

R2-20-205.  Opportunity for No Action on Complaint-Generated Matters 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify the method and time period allowed for an alleged violator to respond to a 

 complaint. 

 

R2-20-206.  Executive Director’s Recommendation on Complaint-Generated Matters 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify the Executive Director’s and complainant’s role prior to bringing a reason-to-

believe recommendationto the Commission. 

 

8. Completion of the Previous Five-Year –Review Report Process 

 

The 2015 report described a proposal to amend this rule to require the Executive Director 

to first receive Commission approval to initiate an inquiry if a person making an 

independent expenditure in an election without a participating candidate faces penalties 

under A.R.S. § 16-942(B).  The proposal, however, is not consistent with the Clean 

Elections Act and the Commission took no action on it.  

 

R2-20-207.  Internally Generated Matters; Referrals 

 

1. Objective 

 

Provide the Executive Director with authority to generate an internal complaint. 

 

R2-20-208.  Complaint Processing; Notification 

 

1. Objective 

 



 

7 

Provide the process for notifying the complainant and the respondent of a reason-to-believe 

determination. 

 

8. Completion of the Previous Five-Year –Review Report Process 

 

The 2015 report described a proposal to amend this rule to clarify processing procedures 

when a complaint alleges an “Article 1” violation involving an independent expenditure.  

That amendment was not completed because it is not consistent with the Clean Elections 

Act.  XX..   

 

R2-20-209.  Investigation 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify the methods used by the Commission to investigate following a reason-to-believe 

determination. 

 

R2-20-210.  Written Questions Under Order 

 

1. Objective 

 

Allow the Commission to issue an order requiring any person to submit sworn, written 

answers to written questions. 

 

R2-20-211.  Subpoenas and Subpoenas Duces Tecum; Depositions 

 

1. Objective 

Allow the Commission to authorize the Administrative Counsel or Assistant Attorney 

General to issue subpoenas for a deposition or issue a subpoena duces tecum during its 

investigation. 

 

R2-20-213.  Motions to Quash or Modify a Subpoena 

 

1. Objective 

 

Allow any person to whom a subpoena is directed to apply to the Commission to quash or 

modify the subpoena.  

 

R2-20-214.  The Probable Cause to Believe Recommendation: Briefing Procedures 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify the procedure for the Commission’s determination of probable cause to believe that 

a violation of the statute or rule has occurred or is about to occur.  

 

R2-20-215.  The Probable Cause to Believe Finding; Notification 



 

8 

 

1. Objective 

 

Provide the process for notifying the respondent of a probable cause finding. 

 

R2-20-216.  Conciliation 

 

1. Objective 

 

Provide the process for settling matters informally. 

 

R2-20-217.  Enforcement Proceedings 

 

1. Objective 

 

Provide the process for assessing civil penalties. 

 

R2-20-220.  Ex Parte Communications 

 

1. Objective 

 

Prohibit ex parte communications with the Commission staff or Commissioner. 

 

R2-20-221.  Representation by Counsel; Notification 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify the extent of a respondent’s right to be represented. 

 

R2-20-222 . Civil Penalties 

 

1. Objective 

 

Designate potential civil penalties. 

 

R2-20-223.  Notice of Appealable Agency Action 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify the Commission’s notice requirement after making a probable cause finding. 

 

R2-20-224.  Request for Administrative Hearing 

 

1. Objective 

 

Designate the timeline and process for a respondent to request a hearing. 



 

9 

 

R2-20-225.  Informal Settlement Conference 

 

1. Objective 

 

Provide the process for a respondent to request an informal settlement conference. 

 

R2-20-226.  Administrative Hearing 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify the timeline and process for conducting administrative hearings. 

 

R2-20-227.  Review of Administrative Decision by Commission 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify the Commission’s responsibilities when it receives notice of an administrative 

decision.  

 

R2-20-228.  Judicial Review 

 

1. Objective 

 

Provide the process for exhausting administrative remedies prior to seeking judicial review.  

 

ARTICLE 3 - STANDARD OF CONDUCT FOR COMMISSIONERS AND EMPLOYEES 

 

R2-20-301.  Purpose and Applicability 

 

1. Objective 

 

Indicate the purpose and scope of this article. 

 

R2-20-302.  Definitions 

 

1. Objective 

 

Define terms for this article. 

 

R2-20-303.  Notification to Commissioners and Employees 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify material to be made available to each employee and Commissioner upon revision 

or entrance of new employment. 



 

10 

 

R2-20-304.  Interpretation and Advisory Service 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify the process for seeking advice on questions of conflict of interest. 

 

R2-20-305.  Reporting Suspected Violations 

 

1. Objective 

 

Provide the procedure for reporting suspected violations of conflict of interest 

requirements. 

 

R2-20-306.  Disciplinary and Other Remedial Action 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify the disciplinary action for violating this Article. 

 

R2-20-307.  General Prohibited Conduct 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify conduct that is prohibited for Commissioners or employees. 

 

R2-20-308.  Outside Employment or Activities 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify the prohibited conduct related to employment and other activities for 

Commissioners or employees. 

 

R2-20-309.  Financial Interests 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify financial conflicts of interest requirements. 

 

R2-20-310 . Political and Organizational Activity 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify conflicts of interest related to express advocacy. 

 

R2-20-311.   Membership in Associations 



 

11 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify potential conflicts of interest related to membership in nongovernmental 

associations or organizations. 

 

R2-20-312.   Use of State Property 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify limitations on using state property. 

 

ARTICLE 4 – AUDITS 

 

R2-20-401.  Purpose and Scope  

 

1. Objective 

 

Provide the purpose and scope of the article. 

 

R2-20-402.  General 

 

1. Objective 

 

 Establish the tools available to the Commission in conducting audits. 

 

R2-20-402.01.  Audits of Participating Legislative Candidates 

 

1. Objective 

 

 Authorize Commission staff to conduct audits of legislative candidates. 

 

R2-20-402.02.  Audits of Participating Statewide Candidates 

 

1. Objective 

 

Provide for audits of participating statewide legislative candidates. 

 

R2-20-403.  Conduct of Fieldwork 

  

1. Objective 

 

 Establish candidate responsibilities during an audit. 

 

R2-20-404.  Preliminary Audit Report 

 



 

12 

1. Objective 

 

 Provide the procedures for the first phase of the audit process. 

 

R2-20-405.  Final Audit Report 

 

1. Objective 

 

 Provide the procedures for the final phase of the audit process. 

 

R2-20-406.  Release of Audit Report 

 

1. Objective 

 

 Provide details on how an audit report is made available to the public. 

 

ARTICLE 5 – RULEMAKING  

 

R2-20-501.  Purpose and Scope 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify the purpose and scope of the Commission's rulemaking. 

 

R2-20-502.  Procedural Requirements 

 

1. Objective 

 

Provide the process for filing a written petition regarding the issuance, amendment or 

repeal of an administrative rule.  

 

R2-20-503. Processing of Petitions 

 

1. Objective 

 

Provide the process for reviewing petitions related to issuing, amending, or repealing rules. 

 

R2-20-504.  Disposition of Petitions 

 

1. Objective 

 

Provide the process for disposition of petitions related to rulemaking. 

 

R2-20-505.  Commission Considerations 

 

1. Objective 



 

13 

 

Specify a nonexclusive list of criteria the Commission may consider in disposing of a 

petition for rulemaking. 

 

R2-20-506.  Administrative Record 

 

1. Objective 

 

Designate which records compose the administrative record. 

 

ARTICLE 6 – EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS 

 

R2-20-601.  Purpose and Scope 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify the purpose and scope of the article. 

 

R2-20-602.  Definitions 

 

1. Objective 

 

Define terms as used in the article. 

 

R2-20-603.  Audits, Investigations & Litigation 

 

1. Objective 

 

Prohibit ex parte communications with the Commission during audits, investigations or 

litigation. 

 

R2-20-604. Sanctions 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify the process for sanctioning those who violate this article. 

 

ARTICLE 7 – AUDITS AND REPAYMENT 

 

R2-20-701.  Purpose and Scope 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify the purpose and scope of the article. 

 

. 



 

14 

 

 

 

R2-20-702.  Use of Campaign Funds 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify legal uses of campaign funds. 

 

R2-20-702.01.  Use of Assets 

 

1. Objective 

 

Provide a method for a candidate to use campaign materials from prior elections. 

 

 

 

 

R2-20-703.  Documentation for Direct Campaign Expenditures 

 

1. Objective 

 

Specify the process by which a participating candidate may ensure that campaign 

expenditures satisfy the direct campaign expenditure requirement. 

  

R2-20-703.01.  Campaign Consultants 

 

1. Objective 

 

 Specify how a participating candidate may engage the services of a campaign consultant. 

 

 

 

 

R2-20-704.  Repayment 

 

1. Objective 

 

Designate the process for repaying distributed funds to the Clean Elections fund and 

specify that the Commission may require such repayment. 

 

R2-20-705.  Additional Audits or Repayment Determination 

 

1. Objective 

 



 

15 

Authorize additional audits or examinations of campaign activity when new facts are 

available.  

 




























































	Agenda - June 25, 2020 (2)
	Item II - April 30th Minutes (1)
	Item III - ED Report w attchs (1)
	Item III - ED Report.pdf
	AZAN v. State Az Cap Media Story
	VOTO Latino SOS Hobbs Statement
	VOTO Latino Settlement

	Item IV - 5 Year Report
	Admin Code (2)

